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grow
beyond

Keppel T&T aims to grow by leveraging
strengths and through strategic partnerships to
deliver value to stakeholders.
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Group financial highlights
In 2006, Keppel T&T achieved an
Attributable Profit of $43.3 million
representing an 11% improvement
from the previous year.

2006
$’000
For the year
Turnover
Profit before tax and exceptional items
Attributable profit before exceptional items
Attributable profit after exceptional items

2005 % Increase/
$’000 (Decrease)

93,016
54,822
42,193
43,298

108,444
50,653
40,526
38,962

(14)
8
4
11

227,337
32,371
259,708
80,159

210,151
32,401
242,552
65,853

8
–
7
22

Per share
Earnings (cents):
– before tax and exceptional items
– attributable before exceptional items
– attributable after exceptional items
Net tangible assets ($)

8.8
7.7
7.9
0.41

8.3
7.4
7.1
0.38

6
4
11
8

Financial ratios
Return on shareholders’ funds (%):
– before tax and exceptional items
– attributable before exceptional items
– attributable after exceptional items
Net gearing (times)

22.1
19.3
19.8
0.31

20.3
18.1
17.4
0.27

9
7
14
15

1,237
33,583

1,226
30,802

1
9

At year-end
Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests
Capital employed
Net borrowings

Personnel
Number of employees
Total wages, salaries and related benefits
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Chairman’s statement
In 2006, the Group expanded into
new market segments in both its
core businesses of Network
Engineering and Logistics.
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Dear Shareholders,
I am pleased to report that the Group maintained its fine
performance in 2006 and turned in an Attributable Profit of
$43.3 million. This is an increase of 11.1% over the previous
year on the back of improved contributions from our
Investments and Logistics Divisions. Investments’ profit rose
17.7% to $29.1 million while Logistics Division’s profit
increased 12.1% to $11.3 million.
Our key performance indicators also showed improvement.
Return on Equity climbed from 18.1% to 19.3% while
Economic Value Added increased $4.0 million to $28.7
million. Our Total Shareholder Return for the year
was 25.2%.
We ended the year with a strong balance sheet and a gearing
of only 0.3 times. This healthy position will enable us to seize
opportunities for growth.
Dividend
Following this good performance, the Board is pleased to
recommend a proposed dividend of 5.5 cents per share,
representing a dividend payout ratio of 63.5% of Attributable
Profit and 37.5% increase from 2005’s dividend of 4.0 cents.
Our core business in review
The buoyant global economy in 2006 provided a healthy backdrop
for our business activities, although the rising oil price posed
some cost challenges especially for the logistics business.
Network engineering
In Network Engineering, we saw demand for the building of
new mobile networks shift from markets like Singapore and
Malaysia to emerging markets like Indonesia and Philippines
where mobile penetration rate is still low and subscriber growth
strong. We directed our activities and resources to position
ourselves for opportunities in these emerging markets.
Regionally, telcos are keenly watching the growth in data
traffic brought on by increasing technology convergence and
adoption of new applications by consumers. We are monitoring
this trend closely to take advantage of opportunities. During
the year, we provided supporting services to Nokia for
the upgrading of MobileOne’s (M1) 3G network providing
High-Speed Downlink Packet Access service. We also
implemented turnkey projects for In-Building Coverage for
the major telcos in Philippines, Thailand and Indonesia.

Chairman’s statement

In Europe and the US, cable operators are progressively
upgrading their cable networks to support “triple play” services
of TV, broadband and voice, in a bid to differentiate themselves
from competitors like satellite television. We are active in this
market, and we expect this phenomenon to provide more
upgrading opportunities in the future. In the utilities market,
there is also greater interest in Geographical Information
System services that we offer for mapping utility assets
on application software.
Logistics
The healthy economic climate in the region and growing
intra-Asian trade benefited logistics activities. In Singapore,
warehouse occupancy improved marginally despite additional
supply that came on-stream to the market. Our warehouses
operated at full capacity during the year. Warehouse rates
remained generally stable. The industry trend for separation
of logistics assets from operations continued with the listing
of yet another industrial REIT on the Singapore Stock
Exchange in early 2006. We will continue to explore
opportunities in this area to improve our return on
investment in our logistics assets.
In China, the economy recorded another year of good growth
in 2006, and logistics activities grew strongly. Our Foshan
port saw more than 20% increase in container throughput.
However, keen competition and higher fuel cost placed some
pressure on margins.
Expansion and growth of our businesses
In June, we announced the acquisition of 35% stake in Wuhu
Annto Logistics Company Limited (Annto) – a third party
logistics provider in China. This strategic acquisition provides
our Logistics Division a vehicle to tap into China’s rapidly
growing logistics market driven by robust economy, dynamic
export growth, expansion in retail outlets and growing
consumerism. Through Annto, we can combine our expertise
in warehouse operations and distribution with Annto’s logistics
network of over 100 points across China to service both local
and MNC customers. We initiated an exchange program with
our Singapore unit for cross-training and skills upgrading for
Annto to offer higher value-added services.
Our Network Engineering Division also extended during the
year into the WiFi space through the acquisition of 30%
stake in iCELL Networks Pte Ltd (iCELL) – an operator of
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Our key performance indicators
showed Return on Equity climbed
from 18.1% to 19.3% while
Economic Value Added increased
$4.0 million to $28.7 million.
Our Total Shareholder Return
for the year was 25.2%.

more than 400 hotspots in Singapore. In October, iCELL
was one of the three operators to be awarded the tender
by Infocomm Development Authority of Singapore to roll-out
the Singapore Government’s nation-wide plan to build a
wireless broadband network, Wireless@SG. Riding on the
back of this WiFi network, iCELL intends to provide business
and consumer applications on WiFi.
At the beginning of 2007, we acquired 50% stake in Premier
Data Centres Limited (PDC) – a high quality 125,000 sq ft
data centre facility based in Dublin, Ireland. The data centre has
near full occupancy whose occupants are mostly well-known
global companies. While our European operation has been
mostly engaged in network upgrading, we see the potential
for growth in data traffic as a result of greater broadband
connectivity and applications. As a result, there is a growing
demand for high-grade data centres. We expect to increase
our presence in this sector through PDC.
We have also increased our stake in M1 by an additional 3%
during the year. Although Singapore’s mobile penetration has
exceeded 100%, we expect growth to come increasingly from
non-voice services. With the introduction of more content
applications on mobile handsets, data traffic will continue to
grow. In 2006, M1’s Average Revenue per User and margins
have both increased on the back of higher contribution from
non-voice services. Keppel T&T will participate in this market
segment through M1.
Going forward, we will continue to seek out suitable acquisitions
regionally and grow our key business areas with strategic
partners. At the same time, we also seek various opportunities
to unlock value to Shareholders in existing assets, and help
free up the Group’s capital for its expansion plans.
Corporate governance
Amidst the Group’s expansion and growth in emerging markets,
the Board took prudent steps to ensure expansion is measured
and calculated. Amongst the steps taken was the formation
of a Board Risk Committee in January 2007, to examine the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system.
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Heartfelt appreciation
I would like to take this opportunity to thank our Shareholders
for their unwavering support during the year.
I would also like to express my deepest gratitude to the
Board of Directors for their invaluable advice and commitment
in the past year. On behalf of the Board, I would also like to
extend our warmest welcome to Mr Tan Boon Huat who
joined the Board in January 2007. We are confident that
Mr Tan’s extensive experience in public administration and
human resource will further strengthen the Board.
The Board and I would also like to express our most sincere
appreciation to the management, staff and Union for their
contributions to the growth and profitability of the Company.
And last but not least, I would like to thank our customers and
business partners for their continued support and confidence
in Keppel T&T.

Yours sincerely,

TEO SOON HOE
Chairman
21 February 2007
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Keppel T&T has
the fundamentals and
the competencies to
grow beyond.

Keppel T&T has consistently
delivered good results and value
to Shareholders. On the back
of strong results, Keppel T&T
is seizing opportunities to
broaden existing businesses
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Grow beyond

along and across the value chain,
extend geographical reach and
service offerings, ride growth
in emerging markets and
capture opportunities in new
industry trends.
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Keppel T&T is...
leveraging strengths

building the future

Grow beyond
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leveraging strengths
Keppel T&T has the fundamentals to grow beyond
Connecting 13 countries across the globe, Keppel T&T
is no stranger to making connections work seamlessly.
That is at the heart of what Keppel T&T does, whether it is a
nation-wide telecommunications network or a distribution
network for goods. Growing beyond merely providing
services, we create value for all stakeholders by offering
solutions as strategic partners.

leveraging strengths
Keppel T&T has the fundamentals
to grow beyond

Enhancement of shareholder value
Keppel T&T creates value for our shareholders through
prudent and proactive capital management aimed at
sustainable growth. The Group delivered strong growth
in 2006, achieving a growth of 11.1% in Attributable Profit
and attained ROE of 19.3%. Keppel T&T also grew its
Economic Value Added by $4.0m. The Company
recommends a proposed dividend of 5.5 cents. In 2006,
the Group also delivered Total Shareholder Return of 25.2%.
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Grow beyond
leveraging strengths
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Value propositions to customers
With more than 10 years of experience in large scale
roll-outs for telcos in Singapore and Malaysia, our Network
Engineering Division is established as a premium network
engineering service provider. Our Logistics Division has more
than 40 years of warehousing and third-party logistics
experience in Singapore; while in China, we have more than
10 years of experience in port operations. We have been
able to consistently grow our competencies and adapt
to meet the evolving demands of our customers and
the industries.

Capable management team
Against the backdrop of an increasingly competitive
landscape, Keppel T&T has built an experienced and
competent management team. Leveraging the diversity of
the team’s experience and backgrounds, the Group has the
expertise to power the next phase of growth.

Grow beyond
leveraging strengths
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building the future
Keppel T&T has the competencies to grow beyond
With a keen eye into the future, Keppel T&T is positioned
for growth and poised to seize opportunities for new growth
platforms, extending our reach and our offerings. Besides
maximising returns from our key businesses, we will continue
to seek out acquisitions with strategic partners.

building the future
Keppel T&T has the competencies
to grow beyond

Seizing growth opportunities
Keppel T&T has been able to identify opportunities and new
growth areas in our key businesses. The three acquisitions
that the Group made in 2006 and early 2007, Premier Data
Centres Limited, iCELL Networks Pte Ltd and Wuhu Annto
Logistics Company Limited, represent the Group’s insight
into growing trends around the world and the opportunities
that they present, whether it is increasing demand for high
quality off-site data storage in Europe, a burgeoning WiFi
market, or an expanding in-country logistics market driven by
growing consumerism.
With a keen eye around the world, Keppel T&T is poised to
leverage trend and seize opportunities to grow and extend
service offerings in new markets. Leveraging the experience
from our past records, the Group transfers skillsets,
competencies and best practices to companies in emerging
markets, enabling them to offer higher value services. The
Group is also incisive to identify opportunities along the value
chains of our existing key businesses and to spot new
emerging trends.
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Grow beyond
Grow
Beyond
building
the breadth
future in execution
Depth and
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Positioned for growth
Healthy balance sheet, strong cash flow and a low gearing
of 0.3 times – these are results of prudent financial
management. The financial depth of the Group places Keppel
T&T in good stead to seize opportunities, strategically enter
new markets, extend service offerings, expand networks and
gain traction for the next lap.

Grow beyond
Grow
Beyond
building
thebreadth
future in execution
Depth
and
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Keppel T&T at a glance
The Group continued to deliver
strong financial performance to
its shareholders.

11.1%

25.2%

Profit growth

Total shareholder return

Attributable profit to Shareholders grew
11.1% to $43.3 million.

The Group delivered strong returns of more than
25% to its Shareholders during the year.

19.3%

0.3 times

Return on equity

Gearing ratio

ROE surpassed 18.1% in 2005 to 19.3%.

Despite the Group’s various expansion initiatives during
the year, gearing remained low at 0.3 times.

37.5%

+$4.0 m

Dividend growth

Economic value added

Higher dividend growth per share from
4.0 cents to 5.5 cents.

EVA grew by $4.0 million from
$24.7 million to $28.7 million.
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Group strategic directions
Keppel T&T will continue to seek
out suitable acquisitions and
grow our business areas with
our strategic partners.
Strategic directions

Objectives

Strategy in action

Strategic
acquisitions

• Broaden
existing
businesses along
and across value
chain

• Leverage Wuhu Annto Logistics
Company Limited’s strategic distribution
network of more than 100 points across
China

• Extend
geographical
reach

• Participate in WiFi arena through iCELL
Networks Pte Ltd
• Capitalise strong demand of high-quality
offsite data storage facilities in Europe
through Premier Data Centres Limited

• Ride growth in
emerging markets

Maximising
returns from
Logistics core
business

Capturing
growth
opportunities
for Network
Engineering

Group strategic directions

• Grow
non-warehousing
income
• Expand into
high-value goods
segment
• Grow non-port
related income
• Unlock
Shareholder
value in existing
assets

• Develop distribution management services

• Leverage
experience and
skillsets from
large roll-outs in
Singapore and
Malaysia

• Direct resources to emerging markets
of Indonesia and Philippines to ride
network expansion plans

• Extend into
adjacent industry
segments

• Provide GIS services to utilities
providers in addition to cable operators
in Europe

• Obtain grant to operate a Type III
Zero-GST warehouse for the regional
distribution needs of companies in the
high-value goods segment
• Expand into freight forwarding in
Shenzhen and Nansha
• Leverage 3PL experience of Singapore
operation to expand into provision of
3PL services overseas
• Explore opportunities to improve return
on investment in logistics assets

• Ride on increasing demands for higher
speed data transmission through the
roll-out and upgrade of regional 3G
networks

Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd
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Global network
Connecting 13 countries across the
globe, Keppel T&T is no stranger to
making connections work seamlessly.

United States of America

Network Engineering
Logistics
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Global network
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United Kingdom

China

Germany

Hong Kong
Vietnam
Philippines
Thailand

Brunei
Malaysia
Sri Lanka

Singapore

Indonesia

Global network

Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd
Report to Shareholders 2006

19

Board of directors

Bachelor of Business Administration, University of Singapore;
Member of the Wharton Society of Fellows, University of
Pennsylvania
Mr Teo Soon Hoe has been a Director of Keppel T&T since
August 1988 and its Chairman since March 1997. He is a Senior
Executive Director and the Group Finance Director of Keppel
Corporation Limited.
He is also the Chairman of Keppel Philippines Holding Inc.
In addition, he is a director of several companies within
the Keppel Group, including Keppel Land Limited, Keppel
Offshore & Marine Limited, k1 Ventures Limited and
Singapore Petroleum Company Ltd. He is also a director
of MobileOne Ltd.

Teo Soon Hoe, 57
Senior Executive Director & Group Finance Director,
Keppel Corporation Limited
Chairman, Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd
Chairman, Divestment and New Investment Committee
Member, Remuneration and Share Option Committee
Member, Nominating Committee

Mr Teo began his career with the Keppel Group in 1975, when
he joined Keppel Shipyard Limited. He rose through the ranks
and was seconded to various subsidiaries of the Keppel
Group before assuming the position of Group Finance
Director in 1985.

Bachelor of Business Administration, National University
of Singapore
Mr Lam Kwok Chong was appointed the Chief Financial
Officer of Keppel T&T in July 2003 and was appointed the
Managing Director and a Director of Keppel T&T in April 2004.
He holds directorships in several Keppel T&T subsidiaries
and associated companies. He began his career with the
Keppel Group in 1980. Since then, he has held various senior
management appointments within the Keppel Group, including
appointments such as the Chief Financial Officer of Keppel
Insurance Pte Ltd, Managing Director of Keppel Securities
Pte Ltd and General Manager (Special Projects) of Keppel
Corporation Limited.

Lam Kwok Chong, 52
Managing Director,
Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd
Member, Divestment and New Investment Committee
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Bachelor of Arts in Biochemistry, University of Cambridge;
MSc University of London; PhD University of Edinburgh; CBiol
MIBiol, Institute of Biology, UK

Tan Tin Wee, 45
Associate Professor of Biochemistry, National University of Singapore
Independent Director
Chairman, Nominating Committee
Member, Audit Committee
Member, Remuneration and Share Option Committee
Member, Divestment and New Investment Committee

Dr Tan Tin Wee has been a Director of Keppel T&T since
September 2000. He is currently an Associate Professor of
the Department of Biochemistry at the National University
of Singapore (NUS), pursuing bioinformatics research on
the converging interface between life sciences and Internet
technologies. In addition, Dr Tan is Chairman of the Academic
Committee, ASEAN Virtual Institute of Science and Technology
(AVIST), Master of Eusoff Hall of Residence at NUS, Board
Director of the International Society for Computational Biology,
Founding Secretariat of the Asia Pacific Bioinformatics
Network (APBioNet), Secretariat of the S* Life Science
Informatics Alliance and secretary of the ExCo, International
Conference on Bioinformatics. He was the founding principal
investigator of the Singapore Advanced Research and
Education Network (SINGAREN). As founder of the multilingual
Internet domain name system (IDN), he has been a key
mover in the internationalisation of the Internet domain name
system. Dr Tan had previously served as Chairman of ASEAN
Sub-Committee on Biotechnology and Asia Pacific Network
Group (APNG), President of the Association for Medical and
Bioinformatics Singapore (AMBIS), and headed Technet Unit
before its commercial debut as Pacific Internet. In addition,
he is also a Director of Bioinformatics Technology Group Pte
Ltd. He has also been involved in a number of NUS start-up
companies and spin-offs.
PPA(P); BBM(L); Bachelor of Science (Hons in Physics),
University of Singapore; Doctor of Philosophy in Engineering
Science, Oxford University (UK); Chartered Engineer (UK);
Member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers (UK); Fellow
of the Institute of Physics (UK); Fellow of the Institute of
Physics, Singapore; Fellow of Trinity College of Music, London;
Diploma in Financial Management (ACCA)

Bernard Tan Tiong Gie, 63
Professor of Physics, National University of Singapore
Independent Director
Chairman, Remuneration and Share Option Committee
Member, Nominating Committee
Member, Divestment and New Investment Committee

Board of directors

Dr Bernard Tan Tiong Gie was appointed a Director of Keppel
T&T in April 2003. Dr Tan is a Director of NUS Technology
Holdings Ltd and the Singapore Symphonia Company Ltd. He
is also Chairman of Keppel Credit Union and Cadi Scientific
Pte Ltd. He has been an academic staff member of the National
University of Singapore (NUS) since 1968, where he is
presently a Professor of Physics and Director of the Center for
Maritime Studies. He was Dean of Science from 1985 to 1997
and Dean of Students from 1997 to 2002 at NUS, where he is
also Chairman of the Centre for Remote Sensing, Imaging and
Processing and the Singapore Synchrotron Light Source. He is
Chairman of the National Internet Advisory Committee and the
National Advisory Committee on Laboratory Animal Research.
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CPA, FCA (England & Wales)
Mr Reggie Thein was appointed a Director of Keppel T&T in
June 2003. He is currently also a Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee of several listed companies in Singapore,
among them Haw Par Corporation Limited, BIL International
Ltd, MobileOne Ltd, Guocoland Limited, MFS Technology Ltd,
FJ Benjamin Holdings Ltd, Grand Banks Yachts Ltd, LindetevesJacoberg Ltd and a Director of Energy Support Management
Pte Ltd and Ascendas Pte Ltd.

Reggie Thein, 66

Mr Thein is a member of the Governing Council of the
Singapore Institute of Directors, a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and member of
the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He
was previously a Senior Partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Vice Chairman of Coopers & Lybrand, and Managing Partner
of its management consulting services firm. In 1999, he was
awarded the Public Service Medal by the President
of Singapore.

Independent Director
Chairman, Audit Committee
Member, Board Risk Committee

Bachelor of Social Sciences (Hons), University of Singapore
Mr Wee Sin Tho was appointed a Director of Keppel T&T in
February 2005. Mr Wee was Chief Executive Officer of HLG
Capital Bhd, a holding company in Malaysia with interests in
stockbroking and asset management. He is currently the Chief
Investment Officer of the National University of Singapore
and a Director of Savu Investments Ltd. Earlier in his career,
he had also served as Managing Director of United Industrial
Corporation Ltd, President of Vickers Capital Limited and Chief
Executive Officer of Vickers Ballas Holdings Ltd.

Wee Sin Tho, 58
Chief Investment Officer, National University of Singapore
Independent Director
Chairman, Board Risk Committee
Member, Audit Committee
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BSc Forestry, University of British Columbia; MSc in
Management Science (Distinction), Imperial College,
University of London
Mr Tan Boon Huat was appointed a Director of Keppel T&T in
January 2007. He is the Chief Executive Director of the People’s
Association, and was the first deputy secretary of Home
Affairs prior to his secondment to the People’s Association. He
currently serves as a director for Housing Development Board,
Singapore Sports Council, National Arts Council and Health
Promotion Board. He also served on the boards of Keppel
Finance Ltd and Keppel Tat Lee Finance Ltd previously.
For his long-standing contributions in Public Service, Mr Tan
was honoured with several accolades including the Public
Administration Medal in 1995 (Silver), as well as the Long
Service Medal in 2000.
Tan Boon Huat, 55
Chief Executive Director, People’s Association
Independent Director
Member, Board Risk Committee

Board of directors
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Past directorships of directors
The past principal directorships of the Directors in the last
five years are as follows:
Teo Soon Hoe
Keppel Bank Philippines Inc; Centurion Bank Limited;
Southern Bank Bhd; Keppel Shipyard Limited.
Lam Kwok Chong
Keppel Global Investors Pte Ltd; Keppel Insurance Pte Ltd;
Keppel Bank Philippines, Inc; Poverest Investments Limited;
Netrust Pte Ltd; Nippon Keppel Communications Kabushiki
Kaisha; Rodway Investments Limited; Folec Holdings (M)
Sdn Bhd; Steamers Telecommunications Pte Ltd; Computer
Generated Solutions (Asia) Pte Ltd; Keppel Securities
Philippines Inc; Indotel Limited; SEM Thong Nhuat Hotel
Metropole; Societe de Development du Metropole (SDM)
B.V.; Folec Communications (B) Sdn Bhd; Blue Cherries Inc;
Business Online Public Company Limited; DataOne
Corporation Pte Ltd.

Reggie Thein
Cooper Brothers Co Pte Ltd; PricewaterhouseCoopers
Corporate Finance Pte Ltd; PricewaterhouseCoopers
Management Services Pte Ltd; PricewaterhouseCoopers
Nominees Pte Ltd; Haw Par Healthcare Limited; Goodwood
Park Hotel Limited; Central Properties Limited; Hotel
Malaysia Limited; Pearl Energy Limited.
Wee Sin Tho
Vickers Ballas Holdings Ltd; Vickers Capital Limited; Auric
Pacific Group Limited; Vertex Ventures Pte Ltd; Singapore
Technologies Capital Services Pte Ltd; Anglo-Eastern
Plantations Plc; HLG Unit Trust Bhd; HLG Asset Management
Sdn Bhd.
Tan Boon Huat
Commercial And Industrial Security Corporation (CISCO);
CISCO International Pte Ltd; S’pore Corp of Rehabilitative
Enterprises; NTUC Media Co-Operative Ltd.

Tan Tin Wee
Multilingual Internet Names Consortium Pte Ltd.
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Keppel Corporation Limited; k1 eBiz Holdings Private
Limited; Singapore Dance Theatre; The Esplanade Co Ltd;
CSA Holdings Ltd.
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Senior management
and key executives

Senior management

Key executives

Corporate Office
Lam Kwok Chong
Managing Director
(refer to profile on page 20)

In addition to the Managing Director, the following are the key
executives (“Key Executives”) of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries:

Loi Ah Noi (Ms)
Financial Controller
Ngiam Share Ching (Ms)
General Manager, Business Development
Network Engineering Division
Keppel Communications Pte Ltd
Wong Chee Choy
General Manager
ECHO Broadband (Singapore) Pte Ltd
Bruno Lopez
Executive Director
Trisilco Folec Sdn Bhd (Malaysia)
Peter Yeow Soo Hiang
Chief Executive Officer
Logistics Division
Keppel Logistics Pte Ltd
Quek Keng Liang
Executive Director
Keppel Logistics (Foshan) Limited
Vincent Ko Woon Chun
Chief Executive Officer

Senior management and key executives

Loi Ah Noi, 60
Bachelor of Accountancy, University of Singapore
Fellow of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
Member of the Chartered Management Institute, UK
Ms Loi Ah Noi joined the shipping division of Straits Steamship
Company Ltd (renamed Keppel Land Limited) in 1978 and was
appointed Financial Controller when Straits Steamship Company Ltd
listed its shipping and warehousing activities under the Company
(formerly known as Steamers Maritime Holdings Ltd) in 1989, a
position which she holds till today. She served as the joint Company
Secretary of the Company upon its listing and up till August 1994.
She also serves as Secretary to the Audit Committee and Board
Risk Committee of the Company. In addition, she currently holds
directorships in several of Keppel T&T’s subsidiaries, including Keppel
Communications Pte Ltd, ECHO Broadband (Singapore) Pte Ltd and
Keppel Logistics Pte Ltd. Prior to joining the Keppel Group, she began
her career with the Port of Singapore Authority in 1970 as an
Accountant and was its Deputy Chief Accountant at the time of her
departure in 1978.
Ngiam Share Ching, 42
Bachelor of Science (Honours), University of Guelph (Canada)
Masters of Business Administration, California State University (USA)
Ms Ngiam Share Ching was appointed General Manager, Business
Development of the Company in September 2004. She is responsible
for strategy and business development for the various divisions of the
Keppel T&T Group’s businesses. She has more than 18 years of work
experience and has worked in regional markets in the information
technology, industrial and energy sectors. Prior to joining the Keppel
T&T Group, she has held positions with Norsk Hydro Asia as its
Director of Business Development, China-Singapore Suzhou
Township as its Sales & Marketing Manager and IBM Singapore as
Systems Engineer. She has also previously served as an independent
consultant to the management of international companies.

Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd
Report to Shareholders 2006

25

Senior management
and key executives

Wong Chee Choy, 49
Bachelor of Engineering, National Defence Academy of Japan
Masters in Business Administration, National University of Singapore
Mr Wong Chee Choy was appointed General Manager, Keppel
Communications Pte Ltd in January 2003. He also holds a concurrent
appointment since October 2004 as Deputy Chief Executive Officer
of Trisilco Folec Holdings Sdn Bhd (Malaysia). He is in charge of the
wireless engineering business, including all project operations’
executions and delivery in the Asian markets for the Network
Engineering Division of the Company. Mr Wong joined the Keppel
T&T Group in August 2001 and is a director of various Keppel T&T
subsidiaries. Prior to joining the Keppel T&T Group, he held several
key positions with Kenwood Electronics Technologies (S) Pte Ltd,
including the post of General Manager, for a period of 8 years. Mr
Wong started his career as a scholarship recipient of the Singapore
Armed Forces (SAF) to study in Japan and had a ten-year
distinguished career with the SAF. His last appointment with the SAF
was as a Branch Head in the Joint Operations Planning Directorate,
Ministry of Defence.
Bruno Lopez, 42
Bachelor of Arts (Honours), National University of Singapore
Masters in Human Resource Management, Rutgers University, USA
Mr Bruno Lopez joined the Keppel T&T Group in September 1995 as
a Human Resource Manager with Folec Communications Pte Ltd,
now known as Keppel Communications Pte Ltd (Keppel
Communications). He has held several senior operational and
management roles since then, including the post of Deputy General
Manager for the Business Solutions Group in Keppel
Communications. He was seconded to ECHO Broadband (Singapore)
Pte Ltd (ECHO Broadband) in April 2000 as its Chief Operating
Officer. In September 2002, he was appointed as Vice President,
Europe, of the Network Engineering Division of the Company and in
May 2003 as its Vice President, Product Marketing and Global
Accounts. He is currently the Executive Director of the ECHO
Broadband business division and sits on the board of directors of
ECHO Broadband GmbH, ECHO Broadband Sdn Bhd, ECHO
Broadband Inc and is also a director of various other Keppel T&T
subsidiaries. Prior to his joining the Keppel T&T Group, Mr Lopez
worked in human resources with the Singapore Armed Forces and
CWT Distribution Ltd.
Peter Yeow Soo Hiang, 56
Graduate of the Institute of Accounting Technicians
Fellow of the Association of Accounting Technicians, UK

several top telecommunications agencies from the USA, such as
Nortel and Harris. Under his leadership, Trisilco Folec expanded its
business in Singapore, Indonesia and the Philippines. Due to his
efforts, Trisilco Folec has become a renowned telecommunications
infrastructure company in Malaysia with a multi-million dollar annual
turnover. Mr Yeow is also a director of Trisilco Radiance
Communications Sdn Bhd.
Quek Keng Liang, 55
Masters in Business Administration, National University of Singapore
Member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK
Mr Quek Keng Liang was appointed Chief Operating Officer of
Keppel Logistics Pte Ltd in February 2000 and was appointed as its
Executive Director in February 2004. He is in charge of strategy and
operational matters relating to the Logistics Division of the Company.
Mr Quek joined Straits Shipping Pte Ltd, a member of the Keppel
Group, in June 1981 as a Divisional Accountant. Since then, he has
held successive appointments in Finance with the Keppel Group,
including the post of Chief Accountant of the Company. He also held
office as Corporate Planning Manager of the Company from 1993 to
1995. He was appointed General Manager of W&T Logistics Pte Ltd
in February 1995. He is a director of Transware Distribution Services
Pte Ltd, Keppel Logistics (Hong Kong) Ltd and Keppel Logistics
(Foshan) Limited and Wuhu Annto Logistics Company Ltd (China).
Mr Quek is also Chairman of the Singapore Logistics Association
with effect from May 2006.
Vincent Ko Woon Chun, 54
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting), Nanyang University
Fellow of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
Mr Vincent Ko started his career when he joined the Keppel Group in
March 1980 as an Accountant with Keppel Shipyard Limited. During
his career with the Keppel Group, he has held various management
appointments in Singapore, China and Hong Kong with Keppel Land
International Ltd, Straits Steamship Company Ltd (now known
as Keppel Land Limited) and Keppel Corporation Limited. He was
appointed as the Company’s Divisional Director, China Business Unit
in January 1998 and in February 2004 assumed the position of
Executive Director. He is also Executive Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer for Keppel Logistics (Foshan) Limited and Keppel
Logistics (Hong Kong) Ltd and is a director of various other Keppel
T&T subsidiaries.

Mr Peter Yeow was appointed Executive Director of Trisilco Folec
Sdn Bhd (Trisilco Folec) in August 1998 and is currently Chief
Executive Officer of Trisilco Folec Holdings Sdn Bhd. He joined
Trisilco Folec as General Manager in 1992. During his first few years
in Trisilco Folec, Mr Yeow managed to secure appointments with
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Past directorships of key executives
The past principal directorships of the Key Executives in the
last five years are as follows:
Loi Ah Noi
Data Resources Centre Asia Pte Ltd; Steamers
Telecommunications Pte Ltd; Montana Management
Services Pte Ltd; Straits Container Line Pte Ltd; CallBiz
(Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd; Keppel T&T Venture Capital Pte Ltd;
Orchid (Holdings) Pte Ltd; Steamers Faith Shipping Pte Ltd;
DataOne Corporation Pte Ltd; Global Space Investments
Limited.
Ngiam Share Ching
–
Wong Chee Choy
Nippon Keppel Communications Kabushiki Kaisha.
Bruno Lopez
ECHO Broadband SARL.
Peter Yeow Soo Hiang
Callbiz (M) Sdn Bhd; DataOne (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd;
Keppel Logistics (M) Sdn Bhd; Folec Holdings (M) Sdn Bhd.
Quek Keng Liang
Suzhou Logistics Pte Ltd.
Vincent Ko Woon Chun
Skyplanet Shipping Limited; Keppel Marina Holdings Pte Ltd;
Keppel Housing Pte Ltd; Suzhou Logistics Pte Ltd.
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Corporate structure
ECHO Broadband
Sdn Bhd

ECHO Broadband
(Singapore) Pte Ltd

ECHO Broadband, Inc

ECHO Broadband
GmbH

Trisilco Folec
Pte Ltd

DataOne (Asia)
Pte Ltd

Keppel
Communications
Pte Ltd

Network
Engineering

Keppel
Communications
(Thailand) Co Ltd

Trisilco Folec
Philippines, Inc
PT Trisilco Folec
Indonesia

Trisilco Folec
Sdn Bhd

NBG Communications
Sdn Bhd

Radiance
Communications
Pte Ltd

Trisilco Radiance
Communications
Sdn Bhd

SVOA Public
Co. Ltd ^

Keppel
Telecommunications
& Transportation Ltd

Steamers (HK)
Limited

Keppel Logistics
(Hong Kong) Limited

Keppel Logistics
Pte Ltd

Transware Distribution
Services Pte Ltd

Keppel Logistics
(Foshan) Limited

Keppel Logistics (M)
Sdn Bhd

Asia Airfreight
Terminal Company
Limited

Trans-ware Logistics
(PVT) Ltd

Keppel International
Freight Forwarding
(Shenzhen) Limited

Logistics

Wuhu Annto Logistics
Company Limited

Keppel Telecoms
Pte Ltd*

Investments

Subsidiary Companies
Associated Companies
Jointly Controlled Entity
^ Held by Apsilon Ventures Pte Ltd
* Held by Keppel Communications Pte Ltd
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Adfact Pte Ltd

Computer Generated
Solutions Inc

Anew Corporation
Ltd *

Apsilon Ventures
Pte Ltd

Advanced Research
Group Co. Ltd

Business Online Public
Co. Ltd *
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MobileOne Ltd

Business structure

Wireless
Network
Engineering
Wireline

Warehousing &
Distribution

Keppel
Telecommunications
& Transportation Ltd

Logistics

Container Services &
Transportation

Supply Chain
Solutions

Investments

Business structure

Mobile
Communications
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Business review
Network engineering
Improved economic conditions and
more user applications saw growth
in voice and data traffic in the region.

The Division participated in the emerging
WiFi arena by acquiring a strategic 30% stake
in iCELL Networks.
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There are growing demands to
digitise manual records of assets
and migrate these records to
a Geographical Information
System platform in the segment
of utility providers.

The Division directed its
resources and transferred some
of its operations to emerging
markets like Indonesia and the
Philippines where there has
been increased spending in
the expansion of networks.

Market overview and outlook
Improved economic conditions and more user applications
saw growth in voice and data traffic in the region. Subscriber
growth remains strong in emerging markets like Indonesia and
Philippines, where mobile penetration rates remain relatively
low. The subscriber growth is supported by improved
economic conditions in both markets. Responding to the
needs of this growth, telcos are expected to expand their
network coverage and build new base transceiver stations.
For more developed regional markets like Singapore and
Malaysia, the focus was upgrading networks to support new
services and cater for growing data traffic and technology
convergence. In October 2006, the Singapore government
launched a nation-wide wireless broadband network initiative
offering free WiFi connection in key public hotspots. The
intent is to promote more broadband applications and
services in the market place. In response, telcos are also

Business review
Network engineering

expediting work in the area of High-Speed Downlink Packet
Access (HSDPA) to meet the expected growth in demand for
mobile connectivity.
In Europe and US, cable operators upgraded their network to
support “triple play” services of video, voice and broadband.
Responding to keen competition from satellite television
and internet protocol televisions in their traditional cable TV
space, cable operators are increasingly bundling traditional
cable programs with voice and broadband services to
improve the competitiveness of their service offerings.
With good cash flow generated from their traditional
businesses, cable operators are ploughing back some of
the cash to upgrade their network to support triple play.
Implementation of the upgrading process would have
been speedier had the cable operators not been partially
preoccupied with the consolidation phase that the industry
went through.
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2006 2005 % Increase/
$’000 $’000 (Decrease)
Network Engineering
Sales
30,484
Operating profit
5,737
Profit before tax and exceptional items 10,122
PATMI before exceptional items
4,561
Assets employed
34,904

47,193
7,189
9,705
4,851
33,037

(35)
(20)
4
(6)
6

In the adjacent customer segment of utility providers, which
uses the same Geographical Information System (GIS)
services as cable operators, there are growing demands to
digitise manual records of assets and migrate these records
to a GIS platform. There have been several tenders for such
work during the year, and we expect more going forward.
Earnings and financial review
In the Network Engineering Division, revenue contribution
from emerging markets increased relative to that of
traditional markets of Malaysia and Singapore. While the
completion of a multi-year project in Malaysia accounted for
the fall in the Division’s revenue, it also brought higher pretax contribution as the final discounts from sub-contractors
and cost provisions made previously were written back to
the project.
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Business review
Network engineering

Demand for data centres is
growing in Europe, driven by a
growth in data storage and data
backup requirements as well as
from online applications.

Operations review
Mobile network
In 2006, the Division was active in Singapore and Malaysia
in operations and maintenance works as well as new areas
like HSDPA. The Division also directed its resources and
transferred some of its operations to emerging markets
like Indonesia and the Philippines where there has been
increased spending in the expansion of networks. The
Division focused on establishing good track records to
position itself as a reliable service provider for network
expansion opportunities in Indonesia.
The Division maintained its focus on profitability and was
selective of new projects. The Division took on projects
which yielded margins that were commensurate with the
project’s complexity and operational risks, while the project
implementation process was tightly monitored to meet cost
budgets and timely delivery.
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The work that ECHO performed
for Cablevision in US is a
testament of ECHO’s capabilities.

In 2006, the Division participated in the emerging WiFi
arena by acquiring a strategic 30% stake in iCELL Networks
Pte Ltd (iCELL). iCELL was one of the three operators
that was awarded the tender by Infocomm Development
Authority of Singapore to install and operate a nation-wide
network of Internet hotspots for public wireless broadband
services. iCELL was awarded the tender for the eastern zone
of Singapore.
Wireline and GIS
ECHO Broadband (Singapore) Pte Ltd (ECHO) continued
to digitise and migrate records of ish’s network
infrastructure in Germany for its new owners. In addition,
it also secured similar contracts from Cablevision in US
and this is expected to generate more follow-on projects
in 2007. The work that ECHO performed for Cablevision
is a testament of ECHO’s capabilities to deliver on-time
and error-free and therefore positions ECHO in good
stead for larger scale projects in the US.

Business review
Network engineering

After successful extension into the adjacent customer
segment of utility providers requiring the same GIS services
as cable operators, ECHO won multi-year GIS work from
EnBW, the main utility provider for the German state of
Baden Wurttenberg, and Tenaga in Malaysia. Leveraging its
track records, ECHO will be bidding for new projects from
EON Bavaria in Germany.
New ventures
In early 2007, the Division acquired a strategic 50% stake
in Premier Data Centres Limited, a premium data centre
located in Dublin, Ireland. The acquisition is part of the
Group’s strategy to capitalise on the growth in broadband
applications and extend its network engineering capabilities
to owning and operating data centres. Demand for data
centres is growing in Europe, driven by a growth in data
storage and data backup requirements as well as from
online applications.
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Business review
Logistics
Buoyant economic conditions lifted
logistics activities in the region.

During the year, the Division acquired a 35% stake
in Wuhu Annto Logistics to enhance its services
and footprint in China.
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Keppel Logistics clinched the
contract for Brother Singapore’s
finished goods distribution.
The contract is an extension of
Keppel Logistics’ partnership
with Brother since 2001, when
Keppel Logistics began
managing its spare parts.

Market overview and outlook
Buoyant economic conditions lifted logistics activities in the
region. Nonetheless, global uncertainties and fluctuations in
commodity prices translated to uncertainty for businesses.
In Singapore, market occupancy for industrial warehouses
improved in tandem with the economy. Although there was
some new warehouse supply that came to the market during
the year, the overall market occupancy across the island for
industrial warehouses averaged above 85%. Rental rates
were generally stable, with rates in the eastern part of
Singapore rising marginally.
The momentum for acquisition of logistics assets by Real
Estate Investment Trusts (REIT) remained strong. Cambridge
Industrial Trust, an industrial REIT, was listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange during the year. The robust
market also provided opportunities for other industrial REITs
to acquire new assets both in Singapore and the region.
China maintained its position as a major manufacturing
powerhouse, with strong growth in exports to major markets
like North America and Europe. On the back of sustained
economic growth in the past decade, the spending power of
Chinese consumers has risen steadily and this trend has
boosted consumption of both import and domestic
production. As such, the overall cargo throughput at Chinese
ports and internal cargo movement will continue to register
good growth.

Business review
Logistics

Earnings and financial review
The Logistics Division recorded higher turnover in its
Singapore operations as a result of higher warehouse
occupancy in the year. In Foshan, freight turnover was lower
despite record throughput as rates declined with
competition. Together with good contributions from Asia
Airfreight Terminal and maiden contributions from Wuhu
Annto Logistics Company Limited (Annto), the Division
chalked up a 19% increase in pre-tax profits for 2006.
Operations review
Singapore operations
In view of the improved economic climate, Keppel Logistics
Singapore (Keppel Logistics) sustained its high occupancy
rate of near 100% throughout the year.
The company also acquired several new customers. In
2006, Keppel Logistics clinched the contract for Brother
International Singapore Pte Ltd’s (Brother) finished goods
distribution. The contract is an extension of Keppel
Logistics’ partnership with Brother since 2001, when Keppel
Logistics began managing its spare parts. Keppel Logistics’
combination of strong IT capabilities, modern facilities and
in-house distribution management team, convinced Brother
that Keppel was its choice provider.
Keppel Logistics also successfully expanded into the
high-value goods segment, providing total inventory
management and airfreight services of mobile phone
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In recognition of its premium
branding in the Pearl River Delta,
Keppel Logistics Foshan was
ranked top six international
freight forwarders in Guangdong
Province, up from the eighth
position in 2005.

Backed by increased trade
volume in China, Foshan’s port
operations showed a 30%
increase in cargo throughput
handling more than 150,000
TEUs in 2006.

equipment and accessories for several new customers.
Keppel Logistics also improved its service offerings to
customers, where it was granted by the Singapore Customs
to operate a Type III Zero-GST (ZG) warehouse. A ZG
warehouse is a designated area approved by the Singapore
Customs for storing imported goods with GST suspended,
while a Type III license allows Keppel Logistics to operate,
and move goods freely between multiple ZG warehouse
locations under a single license. The grant strengthens
Keppel’s position to provide integrated and cost-effective
logistics solution for potential customers in the segment.
In 2006, conscious efforts to grow the delivery and distribution
business paid off. Keppel Logistics was awarded the local
distribution contract for Watson’s Personal Care Store Pte
Ltd (Watsons), for which it serves about 100 Watsons outlets
across the island.
Although rental rates in the general warehousing market
have improved, rates in the western part of the island have
generally remained sluggish. As such, Keppel Logistics
continued to focus on productivity improvement. In particular,
Keppel Logistics successfully rolled-out the first phase of
Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) tagging on all its pallets
in its Automated Storage and Retrieval System (ASRS).
The implementation will enable real-time tracking of pallet
movements within Keppel’s high throughput warehouse.
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Logistics

The division will continue to explore methods to improve its
capital efficiency and enhance shareholder value.
China operations
Backed by the increased trade volume in China, Foshan’s
port operations showed a 30% increase in cargo throughput,
handling more than 150,000 TEUs in 2006. The port operated
at near full capacity.
In 2006, Keppel Logistics Foshan (KLF) also made headway
in developing its non-port revenues. Capitalising the high
demand for specialised third-party logistics (3PL) services
and the experience of our Singapore operations, KLF
currently services major customers such as Osram China and
Tetra Pak. It was also awarded a contract to manage Foshan
Mobile’s warehouse in Foshan.
In recognition of its premium branding in the Pearl River
Delta (PRD), KLF was also ranked the top six international
freight forwarders in Guangdong Province in a campaign
jointly organised by the China International Freight
Forwarders Association and the International Business Daily,
up from the eighth position in 2005.
However, keen competition amongst ports in the PRD and
high fuel cost affected revenues and cost. Managing that,
the management implemented effective cost containment
measures that successfully improved operating margins.
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2006
$’000
Logistics
Sales
Operating profit
Profit before tax and exceptional items
PATMI before exceptional items
Assets employed

61,099
8,556
15,206
11,986
95,372

2005 % Increase/
$’000 (Decrease)
60,076
7,198
12,801
10,136
133,061

2
19
19
18
(28)

Annto’s extensive network of
more than 100 logistics points
enables the Division to tap on
growth opportunities in land
transportation and warehousing
needs in China.

Logistics facilities owned
%
Owned

Warehouse
area
(Sqm)

Capacity of
container
yard (TEUs)

Location

Held by

27 Benoi Sector
Singapore

Keppel Logistics
Pte Ltd

100

25,000

3,500

25-year leasehold
(expiring in 2019)

7 Gul Circle
Singapore

Keppel Logistics
Pte Ltd

100

60,000

–

43-year leasehold
(expiring in 2040)

9 Gul Circle
Singapore

Transware Distribution
Services Pte Ltd

50

39,500

3,000

30-year leasehold
(expiring in 2033)

Columbo
Sri-Lanka

Trans-ware Logistics
(Pvt) Ltd

25

3,700

3,000

Freehold

Foshan, Guangdong
People’s Republic of China

Keppel Logistics
(Foshan) Limited

70

36,500

3,600

50-year leasehold
(expiring in 2045)

In anticipation of higher cargo volume in 2007, the
management is looking for additional land in order to achieve
higher throughput. The Company is also striving to improve
operating efficiencies including the streamlining of operating
procedures and rationalisation of its chartered fleet. In parallel,
business development efforts will be stepped up to grow its
non-port revenues in freight forwarding and 3PL segments.

Business review
Logistics

Tenure

New growth
In 2006, the Division acquired a 35% stake in Annto to
enhance its services and footprint in China. Backed by its
track record and experience, the Division is able to leverage
Annto’s extensive network of more than 100 logistics points
and tap on growth opportunities in land transportation and
warehousing needs in China.
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Business review
Investments
Pre-tax profit improved 5% to $29.5 million
mainly due to higher contributions from
associated companies.

M1 became the first-operator to offer a
nation-wide wireless broadband service.
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2006
$’000

M1 continues to be a significant
contributor to the Group both in
terms of earnings and cash flow.

2005 % Increase/
$’000 (Decrease)

Investments
Sales
1,433 1,175
Operating (loss)/profit
(2,561)
69
Profit before tax and exceptional items 29,494 28,147
PATMI before exceptional items
25,646 25,539
Assets employed
129,432 76,454

22
nm
5
–
69

nm – not meaningful

Other properties
Location

Held by

25 Tampines Street 92
Singapore

Keppel Communications
Pte Ltd

6 units of 3-storey shophouses
at Damansara Perdana
Business Centre, Malaysia

Radiance Converged
Solutions Sdn Bhd

% Land area Office area
Owned
(Sqm)
(Sqm)

Earnings and financial review
Investments’ sales improved from $1.2 million to $1.4 million
in 2006 due to higher sales from a subsidiary in Vietnam.
Pre-tax profit improved 5% to $29.5 million mainly due to
higher contributions from associated companies, especially
from MobileOne Ltd (M1) which the Group acquired an
additional 3% equity interest during the year.
Operations review
Profits from Investments improved due to higher
contributions from M1. In addition, associates such as
Computer Generated Solutions Inc (CGS), Advance Research
Group Co Ltd (ARG) and Business Online Public Co Ltd (BOL)
also turned in better operating results.

Business review
Investments

Tenure

100

5,000

6,000

30-year lease (expiring
in year 2021) with option
for another 30 years

55

963

2,522

99-year leasehold
(expiring in year 2094)

M1 continues to be a significant contributor to the Group
both in terms of earnings and cash flow. M1 registered a
net profit growth of 2.2% from $161.0 million to $164.6
million on the back of improved margins. During the year, the
Group received cash dividends amounting to $37.7 million
which included a special dividend of $16.9 million.
In December 2006, M1 became the first-operator to offer a
nation-wide wireless broadband service that allows new and
innovative services to be launched through its upgraded 3G
network. The Group will participate in this new space
through its stake in M1.
In late 2006, US-based CGS expanded its presence in Europe
through an acquisition of EasyCall, a Romania-based call
centre solutions provider. EasyCall, Romania’s leading provider
of outsourced technical support and call centre services
complements CGS’s technical and help desk services.
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Financial review
Return on equity improved
from 18.1% to 19.3%.
This was also the highest
achieved in the past 5 years.

1. Overview

Turnover
Profit after tax and minority interests before
exceptional items (PATMI)
Exceptional items (including minority share)
Attributable profit
Operating cashflow
Free cashflow
Earnings per share before exceptional items (EPS)
Return on equity before exceptional items (ROE)
Total distribution to shareholders (per share)

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

Change
%

93,016

108,444

(14)

42,193
1,105
43,298
38,676
11,265
7.7 cts
19.3%
5.5 cts

40,526
(1,564)
38,962
30,953
44,964
7.4 cts
18.1%
14.0 cts

4
nm
11
25
(75)
4
7
(61)

nm – not meaningful

Group turnover fell 14% from $108.4 million in 2005 to $93.0 million in 2006 mainly due to lower revenue contribution
from Network Engineering.
PATMI of $42.2 million was 4% higher than the previous year’s profit of $40.5 million due mainly to higher contributions
from the associated companies.
PATMI included tax adjustments of $6.4 million in 2006 and $5.5 million in 2005 mainly from recognition of tax assets
under the group relief system.
Exceptional items of $1.1 million in 2006 was higher largely due to gains from disposal of subsidiaries, associated
companies and investments. However, these were partially set-off by impairment of investments, equity advances and
provision for restructuring of operations. In 2005, the net loss of $1.6 million was due largely to the impairment of a
leasehold building.
Earnings per share (EPS) before exceptional items improved from 7.4 cents to 7.7 cents, an increase of 4% over the
previous year.
Return on equity (ROE) improved from 18.1% to 19.3%. This was also the highest ROE achieved in the past 5 years.
The Group generated a net operating cashflow of $38.7 million in 2006, compared to a lower operating cashflow of $31.0
million in the previous year. The increase was due mainly to improvement in working capital changes as a result of payment
received from a key customer. Free cashflow of $11.3 million was much lower than the $45.0 million in 2005 due largely to
investments in associated company, Wuhu Annto Logistics Company Limited (“Annto”) in China and additional shares acquired
in MobileOne Ltd (“M1”).
For the financial year 2006, the Group is proposing a dividend of 5.5 cents per share compared to 4.0 cents per share and
a capital distribution of 10.0 cents per share paid in 2005.
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Looking ahead, the Group aims to surpass ROE of 19% and will continue to target a dividend policy of about 60% of
profit attributable to shareholders.
Information on the Group’s five-year performance is set out on pages 47 to 52.
2. Turnover
1.4
(1%)

1.1
(1%)

30.5
(33%)

47.2
(44%)

2006 Turnover
61.1
(66%)

2005 Turnover

$ million

60.1
(55%)

Network Engineering

Logistics

$ million

Investments

Group turnover of $93.0 million was 14% lower than that in the previous year. Turnover was lower in Network
Engineering as it did not secure any major contracts after completion of its multi-year project in Malaysia.
Logistics turnover rose marginally to $61.1 million due mainly to improved warehouse occupancy in Singapore. Despite Foshan’s
port operations showing a 30% increase in cargo throughput, turnover was marginally lower in China due to competitive pricing
for its services. Turnover from Investments improved as a result of better performance of a subsidiary in Vietnam.
3. PATMI
4.9
(12%)

4.6
(11%)

2006 PATMI

12.0
(28%)

2005 PATMI

$ million

25.6
(61%)

10.1
(25%)

$ million

25.5
(63%)

Network Engineering

Logistics

Investments

Group profit after tax and minority interests before exceptional items rose 4% in 2006 to $42.2 million. The improvement
came largely from the Logistics segment.
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Network Engineering’s PATMI dipped marginally from $4.9 million in 2005 to $4.6 million in 2006. This was attributable to
the completion of a major project in Malaysia in 2005.
PATMI from Logistics improved 18% to $12.0 million due to higher warehouse occupancy in Singapore and contributions
from an associated company, Annto which was acquired in September 2006.
PATMI for the Investments division improved marginally to $25.6 million in the current year. M1 remained the most
significant contributor to the Group with a PATMI contribution of $25.6 million. During the year, the Group increased its
effective equity holding in the company by 3% to 17%.
4. ROE & dividend per share
ROE improved from 18.1% in 2005 to 19.3% in 2006. The Group paid a dividend of 4.0 cents per share for financial year
2005 and a proposed dividend of 5.5 cents per share has been recommended for financial year 2006 to be paid in 2007.
The Group’s near term goal is to achieve an ROE of at least 19% per annum and to maintain a dividend payout policy of
about 60% of attributable profit to create value for its shareholders.
5. Cashflow

2006
$’000

Change
$’000

Cashflow from operating activities
Operating profit
Depreciation, amortisation and other non-cash items
Cashflow provided by operations before changes in working capital
Working capital changes
Net interest and taxes paid
Proceeds from tax losses transferred under group relief system
Staff compensation and restructuring costs

11,732
3,938
15,670
28,939
(6,424)
625
(134)

14,456
(2,724)
10,324
(6,386)
24,780
(9,110)
(11,966) 40,905
(3,305) (3,119)
21,777 (21,152)
(333)
199

Net cash from operating activities

38,676

30,953

Cashflow from investing activities
Divestments
Investments and capital expenditure
Dividend income

7,188
(74,971)
40,372

4,713
2,475
(9,514) (65,457)
18,812 21,560

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

(27,411)

14,011

(41,422)

11,265

44,964

(33,699)

–
(21,966)

(54,792)
(19,107)

54,792
(2,859)

Free Cashflow
Capital distributed to shareholders of the Company
Dividend paid to shareholders of the Company
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7,723

Operating activities
The Group’s net cash from operating activities increased $7.7 million from $31.0 million in 2005 to $38.7 million in 2006.
The increase was mainly due to improvement in working capital changes as a result of payment received from a key
customer. However, this was reduced by lower proceeds from tax losses transferred under the group relief system.
Investing activities
Net cash from investing activities decreased from an inflow of $14.0 million in 2005 to an outflow of $27.4 million in 2006.
The Group’s outflow in 2006 was largely due to investments in associated company, Annto and additional shares acquired
in M1. Dividends received from investments during the year increased to $40.4 million as it included a special dividend of
$16.9 million paid by M1.
Dividends and capital distribution
In 2006, the Group distributed a total of $22.0 million compared to $73.9 million in 2005. In 2005, distribution comprised
the capital distribution of 10 cents per share and the dividend payment of 3.5 cents per share in respect of year 2004.
In 2006, dividend payment was 4.0 cents per share in respect of year 2005.
6. Financial position
Total liabilities owed and capital invested

Total assets owned
$ million

$ million

600

600
523.1

500
116.1
400

523.1
456.1

500
92.9

59.8

456.1
71.7

400

103.2

470.5
53.7

77.0

125.4

164.2

76.0

300
200

470.5

300
208.0

142.8

143.8

138.8

133.1

125.7

2004

2005

2006

29.4
200
100

100

141.9
32.4

157.1
32.4

236.6

210.1

227.3

2004

2005

2006

0

0

Fixed assets
Bank balances and cash

Investments
Other assets

Shareholders’ funds
Borrowings

Minority interests
Other liabilities

Total assets of the Group declined from $523.1 million in 2004 to $470.5 million in 2006, mainly attributable to the capital
distribution in 2005. Investments rose largely due to the acquisition of additional shares in M1 and acquisition of a 35%
equity interest in Annto in 2006.
The Group’s net borrowings of $80.2 million at 31 December 2006 were higher than 2005 as loans were drawn down
for acquisitions.
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7. Capital structure & financial resources
The Group carried out a capital restructuring exercise which involved the capital reduction and distribution of 10 cents per
share in 2005. Its capital structure is now more efficient and the Group aims to maximise returns for shareholders.
All investments will have to satisfy stringent criteria for return on investment as well as risk management analysis and will
comprise a combination of equity and debt where appropriate.
Capital structure
Group shareholders’ funds increased from $210.1 million in 2005 to $227.3 million in 2006. This was due to the retained
profit for the year after payment of dividend of 4.0 cents per share for 2005 in 2006.
Minority interests of the Group remained at $32.4 million in 2006.
Gearing

Interest coverage
$ million

$ million
0.6

300

80

16.0

12.5
12.0

60

0.3

0.3

100

11.1

0.4

200

266.0
0.1

38.8

0.2

259.7

242.6

0.0

Capital employed

Net debt

8.0

60.2

55.0

4.0

80.2

65.9
2005

49.5

20

0

2004

9.2

40

5.4
2004

0

2006
Gearing

EBIT

Interest expense

5.4

4.4
2005

0.0

2006
Interest coverage

The net gearing of the Group remained at 0.3 times in 2006 as increase in net debt was proportionately offset by higher
capital employed.
Interest coverage dropped from 12.5 times in 2005 to 11.1 times in 2006. Interest cost was higher because of higher
interest rates and increased borrowings.
At the last Annual General Meeting in 2006, shareholders gave their approval for mandates to issue and buy back shares.
The Company did not exercise these mandates during the year.
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Borrowings
The Group’s borrowings from a related company are in the form of short-term and long-term loans. The Group utilises
short-term facilities from local and foreign banks for its working capital. Gross borrowings at the end of 2006 were
$157.1 million (2005: $141.9 million).
Loans are estimated to be repayable as follows:

Within one year
After one but within two years
After two but within five years
After five years
Total borrowings

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

55,623
4,750
56,750
40,000

80,613
53,750
7,500
–

157,123 141,863

The Group’s borrowings are fully unsecured.
Financial resources
The Group maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and an adequate amount of standby credit facilities to fund its
working capital requirements and capital expenditure.
At the end of 2006, credit facilities in the form of short-term loans, overdrafts, letters of credit, bank overdrafts and other
banking facilities provided by banks to the Group amounted to $60.5 million (2005: $62.0 million) of which $1.4 million
(2005: $13.5 million) was utilised.
8. Financial risk management
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise loans and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The Group also enters into derivative transactions, mainly forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage currency
risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources of financing. It is, and has been throughout the year under
review, the Group’s policy that no trading in derivative financial instruments be undertaken.
The Group’s financial risk management is covered in greater detail in the notes to the financial statements on pages 68
to 102.
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9. Critical accounting policies
The summary of significant accounting policies of the Group is dealt with in the notes to the financial statements. In order
to prepare the financial statements in conformity with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and the Interpretation of
Financial Reporting Standards, management made certain estimates and assumptions.
The matters stated below are considered to be most critical in understanding the judgements that are involved in the
preparation of the financial statements.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is based on the invoiced value of goods and services rendered and represents warehousing and container
service revenue. It also represents income from telecommunications contracts, installation and maintenance of
communications systems and provision of support services.
The Group recognises contract revenue to the extent of contract costs incurred based on the stage of completion
method. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred to date to the estimated total
costs for the contract.
Impairment of assets
The carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that asset is estimated and an
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. The impairment loss is
charged to the profit and loss account unless it reverses a previous revaluation in which case it will be charged to equity.
Taxation
The Group has exposure to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining the
group-wide provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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Five-year group operating results

The results of the Group for the five years ended 31 December 2006 were as follows:
2002
$’000

2003
$’000

2004
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

Turnover

297,638

242,422

173,057

108,444

93,016

Operating (loss)/profit

(19,112)

(967)

10,463

14,456

11,732

Interest income
Interest expense
Share of results of associated companies
and jointly controlled entity

1,810
(10,597)

711
(5,579)

578
(5,357)

3,339
(4,380)

2,551
(5,423)

58,266

35,067

38,449

37,238

45,962

Profit before tax and exceptional items

30,367

29,232

44,133

50,653

54,822

Exceptional items

61,472

(8,303)

(98)

(1,581)

19

Profit before taxation

91,839

20,929

44,035

49,072

54,841

Taxation

(3,058)

1,276

(5,131)

(6,566)

(7,243)

Profit for the year

88,781

22,205

38,904

42,506

47,598

24,676
62,289
86,965
1,816

27,533
(8,247)
19,286
2,919

36,407
181
36,588
2,316

40,526
(1,564)
38,962
3,544

42,193
1,105
43,298
4,300

88,781

22,205

38,904

42,506

47,598

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Profit before exceptional items
Exceptional items
Minority interests

Turnover
$ million

$ million

350
300

70

297.6
50.7

242.4

250

54.8

50

44.1

200

40

173.1
30.4

150

60

29.2

30

108.4
100

93.0

50

20
10

0

0

2002

2003
Turnover

Five-year group operating results

2004

2005

2006

Profit before tax and exceptional items
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Quarterly results

Turnover
2005
2006

1st Qtr
$’000

2nd Qtr
$’000

3rd Qtr
$’000

4th Qtr
$’000

Total
$’000

24,955
24,138

28,433
23,089

29,527
22,147

25,529
23,642

108,444
93,016

2,385
1,961

4,317
4,071

1,914
2,860

5,840
2,840

14,456
11,732

10,618
11,476

13,105
14,668

12,081
13,580

14,849
15,098

50,653
54,822

9,780
9,781

8,892
8,929

12,563
12,763

9,291
10,720

40,526
42,193

Operating profit
2005
2006
Profit before tax and exceptional items
2005
2006
Attributable profit before exceptional items
2005
2006

Quarterly turnover

Quarterly profit before tax
and exceptional items

Quarterly attributable profit
before exceptional items

$ million

$ million

$ million

120

60

50
54.8

108.4
50.7
100
25.5

93.0

42.2
40.5

50
40

15.1
14.9

23.6

80

9.3

40
30

29.5
60

10.7

13.6
22.2

12.1

30

12.5

12.8

8.9

8.9

9.8

9.8

2005

2006

20
40

28.4

23.1

20

14.6

13.1

10
20

10
25.0

24.1

2005

2006

0

11.5

2005

2006

0

0

Q1
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Five-year group financial profile

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Balance sheet ($’000)
Fixed assets
Investments
Intangibles
Deferred tax assets
Bank balances and cash
Other assets
Total assets

248,255
148,195
15,476
–
70,939
140,481
623,346

232,036
148,134
13,316
9,587
42,602
152,624
598,299

138,768
142,748
594
9,001
125,422
106,540
523,073

133,090
143,831
–
–
76,010
103,140
456,071

125,669
208,046
–
–
76,964
59,813
470,492

Borrowings
Deferred taxation
Other liabilities

(241,328)
(3,534)
(118,621)

(250,879)
(1,263)
(87,864)

(164,216)
(717)
(92,189)

(141,863) (157,123)
(844)
(884)
(70,812) (52,777)

Net assets

259,863

258,293

265,951

242,552

259,708

Share capital & reserves
Minority interests

234,595
25,268

229,354
28,939

236,624
29,327

210,151
32,401

227,337
32,371

Capital employed

259,863

258,293

265,951

242,552

259,708

5.0
4.5
16.0

4.6
5.0
3.5

7.4
6.7
6.7

8.3
7.4
7.1

8.8
7.7
7.9

Gross dividends (cents)

4.3

3.0

3.5

4.0

5.5

Net tangible assets ($)

0.40

0.40

0.43

0.38

0.41

Financial ratios
Return on shareholders’ funds (%) (Note 2)
– before tax and exceptional items
– attributable before exceptional items
– attributable after exceptional items

14.5
13.1
46.1

10.9
11.9
8.3

17.4
15.6
15.7

20.3
18.1
17.4

22.1
19.3
19.8

93
66

97
81

62
15

58
27

60
31

Per share
Earnings (cents) (Note 1)
– before tax and exceptional items
– attributable before exceptional items
– attributable after exceptional items

Debt-equity ratio
– Gross (%)
– Net of cash (%)

Notes:
1. Earnings per share are calculated based on the Group profit by reference to the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.
2. In calculating return on shareholders’ funds, the average basis has been used.
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Group financial position

Total assets owned
$ million
700

Other assets
Bank balances and cash
Investments
Fixed assets

623.3
598.3

600

523.1

155.9
175.6

500

116.1

456.1

42.6

400

470.5
59.8

70.9
103.2

77.0
300

148.2

125.4
148.1

200
248.3
100

76.0

142.8

143.8

208.0

138.8

133.1

125.7

2004

2005

2006

232.0

0

2002

2003

Total liabilities owned and capital invested
$ million
700

Other liabilities
Borrowings
Minority interests
Shareholders’ funds

623.3
598.3

600
122.1

89.1

523.1

500
92.9
400

241.3

456.1
71.7

250.9
164.2

53.7

157.1
141.9

300
25.3

28.9

29.4

234.6

229.4

236.6

210.1

227.3

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

32.4

200

100

470.5

32.4

0
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Five-year group analysis by industry

Turnover
$ million
350

300

Shipping
Investments
Logistics
Network engineering

297.6
33.6

250

17.0

242.4
28.8

200

71.2

8.3
66.0

150

173.1
7.3
2.2
64.4

100

108.4
1.1

175.8
139.3

60.1

1.4
61.1

99.2

50

93.0

47.2

30.5

0

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

Profit/(loss) before tax and exceptional items
$ million

60
54.8
50.7

50
44.1
3.5

40

30

30.4
2.9

Shipping
Investments
Logistics
Network engineering

29.5
28.2

29.2
3.8
24.3

20

18.2

17.6

10

15.2

9.7

10.1

13.0
13.1

0

12.8

11.8
3.3

(3.8)

(4.0)

2002

2003

(10)

Five-year group analysis by industry

2004

2005

2006
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Value-added statement

2006
$’000
Value added from:
Turnover
Less bought-in materials and services
Value added from operations
In addition:
Interest income
Share of results of associated companies and jointly controlled entity
Exceptional items
Total Group value added
Distribution of Group value added:
To employees in wages, salaries and benefits
To government in income and other taxes
To providers of capital on:
Interest paid on borrowings
Dividends to shareholders
Dividends to minority shareholders in subsidiaries

Balance retained in business:
Depreciation
Minority interests
Surplus for the year

Total distribution
Number of employees (average)
Productivity analysis:
Value added per employee ($’000)
Value added per dollar employment cost ($)
Value added per dollars sales ($)
Value added per dollar investment in fixed assets (before depreciation) ($)
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2005
$’000

93,016
(36,109)
56,907

108,444
(52,749)
55,695

2,551
45,962
19

3,339
37,238
(1,581)

105,439

94,691

33,583
8,946

30,802
8,272

5,423
21,966
3,165
30,554
73,083

4,380
19,107
1,496
24,983
64,057

6,724
4,300
21,332
32,356

7,235
3,544
19,855
30,634

105,439

94,691

1,220

1,118

86
3.14
1.13
0.41

85
3.07
0.87
0.35

Our people
Keppel T&T believes that the key to
the success of the organisation is its
ability to attract, train and retain
talents that will drive and execute
the Group’s strategies.
Several managers from Thailand
and China attended a young
managers programme organised
for international business units
of the Keppel Group.

Improving our talents: Training and development
To meet the ever-evolving needs of the markets, it is
essential for our people to possess the right knowledge,
skill-sets and competencies. In each of our key businesses,
the Group constantly provides avenues and platforms for
employees to upgrade and update their competencies.
In Network Engineering, the Division continuously built on
its team’s capabilities to deliver the newest wireline and
wireless technologies, while keeping up-to-date with
emerging technologies in the marketplace. Apart from the
hard skills, the Division also honed its management skills
through leadership training.
In the Logistics Division, we focused our training on building
the employee’s effectiveness and adaptability in new work
situations, given the dynamic changes in technologies.
Based on the “Employability Skills System”, our logistics
team were trained on problem solving and decision making
skills, initiative and enterprise skills, communication and
relationship management, and information technologies.
Our Senior Management attended a forum on “Mastering
Commercial Due-Diligence” to gain a greater understanding
of the due-diligence process to enhance their thoroughness
and vigilance when conducting due-diligence. Other
executives at the Corporate Office were also sent on training

Our people

programmes to enhance their technical, management and
leadership skills to support the Group in its various initiatives.
To leverage synergies between our various businesses
across regions, several exchange-programmes for our
overseas units were organised to facilitate transfer of
skill-sets and experiences across various units. In the
Logistics Division, a two-week exchange programme was
organised for executives from Annto where they attended a
detailed business attachment with various Singapore
operational departments. In the Network Engineering
Division, a four-month on-the-job training programme was
conducted in an effort to transfer Singapore’s 3G network
expertise to its Thailand counterpart. Looking ahead, the
Group will organise more exchange programmes across its
business units.
The Group also participated in several Keppel Group training
initiatives in 2006. In August 2006, the Keppel Group Finance
Seminar provided finance managers from the Keppel T&T
Group the opportunity to interact across the Keppel Group.
While in October 2006, several managers from Thailand and
China attended a young managers programme organised for
international business units of the Keppel Group in Singapore
where they shared, learned and acquired inter-cultural skills
and experiences as well as gained an overall knowledge of
the Group’s business and its work standards.
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Building the team: Employee relations
During the year, Keppel T&T devoted efforts to foster
cohesion and collaboration amongst management,
employees and unions.
The Group and its subsidiary, Keppel Logistics, took up the
Fair Employment Practices pledge under a tripartite initiative
by Singapore National Employers Federation (SNEF),
Singapore Business Federation (SBF), Ministry of Manpower
and National Trade Union Congress (NTUC) in October 2006.
Under the terms of the pledge, the Group will ensure that its
recruitment and employment practices remain free of racial,
religion, gender and age biases and maintain an equal
opportunity, merit-based reward and compensation HR
practices that respects all employees.
Across its business units, the Group held events that were
crucial in strengthening staff management relations and
interactions amongst its employees at all levels.
Keppel Logistics Singapore set up a series of employeemanagement dialogue sessions as an alternative avenue for
employees to address work and human resource issues as
well as co-develop workplace solutions. Several staff
functions were held this year to encourage greater
management and employee cohesion and goodwill. The
Group continued with its tri-annual birthday dinners to
celebrate employees’ birthdays with active participation
from senior management and union members.
In China, Keppel Logistics (Hong Kong) organised Chinese
New Year and Christmas gatherings for its staff. While
Keppel Logistics (Foshan) organised a day-tour for employees
in September 2006 to Zhong Shan City, Guangdong (China).
While in Malaysia, ECHO held monthly employee birthday
celebrations. In October, the company held a Buka Puasa
dinner to celebrate the Hari Raya Puasa. It also held a
Christmas event for employees in December 2006.
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In Germany, ECHO organised bowling and go-karting
events as part of relationship building between
management and staff.
While in Philippines, Trisilco Folec organised a summer
outing at the Wonder Island resort at Calamba Laguna Resort
in May 2006.
The challenge ahead for the Group is to continue its efforts
to keep its employees continually engaged and motivated
and take a personal stake in its future through consistent
and open communication channels between management
and employees.
Safety first: Occupational health & safety
The Group made concerted efforts this year in formulating a
cohesive approach towards improving safety standards in
local and overseas units.
In 2006, the Group incorporated safety as a key management
report item to its management and Board. Safety issues will
continue to feature as a key item monitored by the Group’s
top level management.
In Singapore, Keppel Logistics held its fourth annual Safety
Month in July 2006. Many safety related activities such as
fire drills and emergency response exercises, fire fighting
demonstrations, safety promotions, safety quizzes, safety
training and workshops were conducted and organised for
employees to build up safety awareness. A safety newsletter
was also launched during the Safety Month. Keppel
Logistics’ efforts in promoting safety issues bore fruit as
reflected by a greatly improved safety record for 2006.
Going forward, the Group will maintain its momentum
in highlighting safety issues to drive home the message
that safety is a shared responsibility by each and
every employee.
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Several staff functions were held
this year to encourage greater
management and employee
bonding and goodwill.

In the Philippines, Trisilco Folec
organised a summer outing to
the Wonder Island resort at
Calamba Laguna Resort in
May 2006.

Enriching lives: Healthy lifestyles
The Group firmly believes in the benefits of its Employee
Wellness programme and continues to embrace and
promote healthy lifestyles in its employees. The first
Wednesday of every month was instituted as “Healthy
Eating Day” where employees are given a fruit pack to
encourage the inclusion of fruits into their daily diet.
The Group also dedicated the month of September to
“Sports and Wellness” where a series of health and fitnessrelated events promote awareness in its employees. During
that month, the Group also conducted an on-site health
screening for employees. The month-long event culminated
in a mass workout and inter-department games challenge on
the company’s premises.
Transware Distribution Services also organised a 12-week
session of aerobics exercises for its employees starting in
January 2006.

Active workforce: Sports and fitness
To promote sportsmanship and teamwork in employees, the
Group took part in numerous sports competitions in 2006.
In July, the Group held its annual bowling tournament at the
Civil Defence Association for National Servicemen (CDANS)
STAR Bowl. In the following two months, the Group also
hosted the bowling event for the Keppel Group Inter-SBU
Games and participated in several games such as 8-ball pool,
golf, badminton and the biathlon.
Keppel Logistics also took part in the International Company
Games organised by Dynamite Systems and Trading. The
bowling event took place in March while the 8-ball pool event
took place in May. In December, Keppel Logistics carried out
an Employee Fitness Assessment test to allow employees to
gauge their physical fitness levels.
ECHO also held a bowling tournament in November.
It also organised an in-house self defence class for
female employees.

Once again, the Group’s efforts to promote health and
fitness at the workplace were recognised with Keppel
Logistics and Transware Distribution Services being awarded
the “Gold” Awards from the Health Promotion Board and
Radiance Communications the “Silver” Award.
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The Group’s efforts to promote
health and fitness at the
workplace were recognised with
Keppel Logistics and Transware
Distribution Services being
awarded the “Gold” Awards
from the Health Promotion Board
and Radiance Communications
the “Silver” Award.
Corporate citizenship: Contributions to community
The Group continued to demonstrate its commitment in the
support of its larger community, devoting substantial efforts
to improving the quality of the lives and welfare of its
community at large.
In 2006, the Group remained a keen and active partner in
the Keppel Group’s Keppel Volunteer programme with the
Association for Persons with Special Needs (APSN). In
Singapore, it continued to participate actively in charitable
fund raising events for the Children’s Society and for the
Children’s Charities Association. In Thailand, the Group also
made contributions to the “Better Thailand Foundation”
which provided learning opportunities in art to underprivileged and disabled children.
In recognition of its unwavering support for National
Service, Keppel Logistics was once again awarded the
NSMen’s Employers Award (Commendation Category) from
the Ministry of Home Affairs (MHA) in October 2006. The
Community Chest of Singapore awarded the Gold award
to Keppel Logistics for its consistent efforts in the
SHARE programme.
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Keppel Logistics was also an avid supporter of educational
programmes with local tertiary institutions and took part in
their industrial training programmes to teach logistics
management proficiency to students. Ngee Ann Polytechnic
presented a plaque to Keppel Logistics in appreciation for the
support in their Industrial Attachment Programme.
In July 2006, when China’s Guangdong province experienced
one of the worst floods in recent years, staff of Keppel
Logistics (Foshan) organised a donation drive for flood victims.
Going forward
Looking ahead for the year 2007, Keppel T&T Human
Resources will continue to look for new ways to value add as
a key agent for change and organisation renewal. We will
continue to foster a safer and more secure environment for
our workforce, business and community stakeholders.
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Statutory reports & accounts

Directors’ report

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report, together with the audited financial statements of the Group, for the
financial year ended 31 December 2006 and balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2006.
1.

Directors
The Directors in office at the date of this report are:
Teo Soon Hoe (Chairman)
Lam Kwok Chong
Tan Tin Wee
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Reggie Thein
Wee Sin Tho
Tan Boon Huat (appointed on 17 January 2007)

2.

Audit committee
The Audit Committee carried out its function in accordance with the Companies Act. In relation to the financial
statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2006, the Committee reviewed the
audit plans and the scope of examination of the external auditors of the Company, and the scope and results of internal
audit procedures of companies within the Group. It further reviewed the financial statements of the Group and the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2006 and the report of the external auditors thereon. The functions
performed are detailed in the report on Corporate Governance.
The Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors the re-nomination of Ernst & Young, Certified Public
Accountants, as external auditors of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, all of whom are independent Directors. The members of the
Committee in office at the date of this report are:
Reggie Thein (Chairman)
Tan Tin Wee
Wee Sin Tho

3.

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares or debentures
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose
objects are, or one of whose object is, to enable the Directors to acquire benefits through the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, other than the Keppel T&T Share Option Scheme 1993.

4.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures
The Directors holding office at the end of the financial year and their interests in shares and share options of the Company
and related companies as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings, required to be kept under Section 164 of
the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50, were as follows:

Interest in Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd
(Ordinary shares)
Teo Soon Hoe
Lam Kwok Chong
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At
1.1.06

At
31.12.06

At
21.1.07

28,000
750

28,000
750

28,000
750
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At
1.1.06

At
31.12.06

At
21.1.07

Interest in Keppel Corporation Limited
(Ordinary shares)
Teo Soon Hoe
Lam Kwok Chong
Reggie Thein

1,074,166
230,000
8,000

1,354,166
150,000
8,000

1,354,166
150,000
8,000

Interest in Keppel Corporation Limited
(Share options)
Teo Soon Hoe
Lam Kwok Chong

1,200,000
287,500

1,150,000
447,500

1,150,000
447,500

-

100,000

100,000

Interest in Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc
(“B” shares of 1 Peso each)
Teo Soon Hoe

2,000

2,000

2,000

Interest in Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc
(Shares of 1 Peso each)
Teo Soon Hoe

2,916

2,916

2,916

302,830

302,830

302,830

Interest in Keppel Structured Notes Pte. Limited
(SGD Commodity Linked Guaranteed Notes Series 1)
Teo Soon Hoe

Interest in Keppel Philippines Marine, Inc
(Shares of 1 Peso each)
Teo Soon Hoe
5.

Directors’ contractual benefits
Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company
has received or has become entitled to receive benefits by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related
corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member or with a company in which the Director
has a substantial financial interest.

6.

Options
The Keppel T&T Share Option Scheme 1993 which has been approved by the shareholders of the Company is
administered by the Remuneration and Share Option Committee, whose members are:
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie (Chairman)
Tan Tin Wee
Teo Soon Hoe
Under the Keppel T&T Share Option Scheme 1993, an option may, except in certain special circumstances, be exercised
at any time after two years but no later than the expiry date. The shares under option may be exercised in full or in
respect of 100 shares or a multiple thereof, on the payment of the subscription price. The subscription price is based on
the average last business done price for the shares of the Company on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited for the three market days preceding the date of offer. The Remuneration and Share Option Committee may at its
discretion fix the subscription price at a discount not exceeding 20 per cent to the above price. None of the options
offered in the financial year was granted at a discount. The employees to whom the options have been granted do not
have the right to participate by virtue of the options in a share issue of any other company.
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Options to take up 830,000 unissued shares were granted during the financial year. 1,395,000 shares were issued by
virtue of the exercise of options and options to take up 301,000 shares were cancelled during the financial year.
At 31 December 2006, the following options to take up 2,702,000 unissued shares in the Company were outstanding:

Date of
Grant

At 1.1.06
Or Later
Date of
Grant

06.03.99
07.09.99
04.03.00
16.11.00
01.06.01
22.10.01
24.05.02
11.09.02
06.08.03
11.02.04
10.08.04
08.02.05
08.08.05
07.02.06
08.08.06

74,000
254,000
282,000
511,000
424,000
237,000
128,000
158,000
30,000
325,000
300,000
365,000
480,000
415,000
415,000

(60,000)
(263,000)
(312,000)
(172,000)
(72,000)
(96,000)
(30,000)
(250,000)
(100,000)
(40,000)
-

4,398,000

(1,395,000)

Number of
Share Options
Exercised
Cancelled

At
31.12.06

Subscription
Price ($)

Expiry
Date

(73,000)
(78,000)
(10,000)
(10,000)
(10,000)
(40,000)
(40,000)
(40,000)
-

14,000
181,000
204,000
248,000
112,000
55,000
46,000
52,000
75,000
160,000
325,000
400,000
415,000
415,000

1.14
1.87
2.33
1.46
1.10
0.98
0.88
0.88
0.78
0.75
0.72
0.795
1.27
1.42
1.61

05.03.09
06.09.09
03.03.10
15.11.10
31.05.11
21.10.11
23.05.12
10.09.12
05.08.13
10.02.14
09.08.14
07.02.15
07.08.15
06.02.16
07.08.16

(301,000)

2,702,000

No options have been granted to Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company or their associates and no
employee received 5 per cent or more of the total number of options available under the Keppel T&T Share Option
Scheme 1993.
Fair value of options
On 7 February 2006 and 8 August 2006, the Company granted 415,000 options per tranche under the Scheme. This is
0.15% of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2006. The options will vest in two years and will expire
in ten years. The exercise prices of $1.42 and $1.61 respectively were the average last done prices for the Shares on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for the three market days preceding the date of offer. The Company
estimated the fair value of each option granted under each tranche to be $0.554 and $0.661 respectively. This was
calculated by applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The total fair value of options granted for 2006 amounts to
approximately $504,000. This represents 1.20% of the Group’s 2006 attributable profit before exceptional items.
During the financial year, no options to take up unissued shares of any subsidiary were granted and there were no shares
of any subsidiary issued by virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.
At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of any subsidiary under option.
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7.

Auditors
Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

On behalf of the Board

TEO SOON HOE
Chairman

LAM KWOK CHONG
Managing Director

Singapore, 21 February 2007
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Consolidated profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 December 2006

Group
Note

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

Turnover
Less operating expenses

3
4

93,016
(81,284)

108,444
(93,988)

Operating profit

5

11,732

14,456

Interest income
Interest expense
Share of results of associated companies and
jointly controlled entity

6
7

2,551
(5,423)

3,339
(4,380)

45,962

37,238

54,822

50,653

19

(1,581)

54,841

49,072

(7,243)

(6,566)

47,598

42,506

42,193
1,105

40,526
(1,564)

43,298
4,300

38,962
3,544

47,598

42,506

7.7
7.7

7.4
7.4

7.9
7.9

7.1
7.1

Profit before tax and exceptional items
Exceptional items

8

Profit before taxation
Taxation

9

Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Profit before exceptional items
Exceptional items

8

Minority interests

Earnings per share (cents)
Before exceptional items
- basic
- diluted

10

After exceptional items
- basic
- diluted

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 68 to 102 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Balance sheets
As at 31 December 2006

Group

Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

70,006
157,331
227,337
32,371

54,822
155,329
210,151
32,401

70,006
102,213
172,219
-

54,822
84,726
139,548
-

259,708

242,552

172,219

139,548

13

125,669

133,090

-

-

14
15
16

188,240
19,806
208,046

120,550
23,281
143,831

78,479
6,673
85,152

96,166
6,673
102,839

Long-term receivables

17

26

5,376

-

-

Current assets
Stocks and work-in-progress
Debtors
Amounts owing by holding and related companies
Amounts owing by associated companies
Fixed deposits
Bank balances and cash

18
19
20
21
22

3,130
54,086
544
2,027
69,015
7,949
136,751

5,105
89,478
947
2,234
64,683
11,327
173,774

1,727
64,520
21,955
68
88,270

75
1,102
36,828
86
38,091

Less: Current liabilities
Creditors
Amounts owing to holding and related companies
Amounts owing to associated companies
Short-term borrowings
Taxation

23
20
21
24

50,510
529
333
55,623
1,405
108,400

66,769
803
95
80,613
3,145
151,425

783
53
82
285
1,203

813
345
82
142
1,382

28,351

22,349

87,067

36,709

101,500
884
102,384

61,250
844
62,094

-

-

259,708

242,552

172,219

139,548

Note
Share capital
Reserves
Share capital and reserves
Minority interests

11
12

Capital employed
Represented by:
Fixed assets
Investments
Subsidiaries
Associated companies and jointly controlled entity
Others

Net current assets
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred taxation

Net assets

25
9

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 68 to 102 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2006

The Group
Balance at 1 January 2006
Issue of shares
Transfer of share premium reserve
to share capital account (Note 11)
Cost of share-based payment
Net fair value changes on
available-for-sale financial assets
Net fair value changes on
cash flow hedge
Transfer to profit and loss account
Transfer to capital reserves (Note 12)
Profit for the year
Dividend paid for 2005 (Note 33)
Exchange differences arising
on consolidation
Dividend paid to minority shareholders
Balance at 31 December 2006

Balance at 1 January 2005
Issue of shares
Capital reduction
Cost of share-based payment
Net fair value changes on
available-for-sale financial assets
Net fair value changes on
cash flow hedge
Transfer to profit and loss account
Transfer to capital reserves (Note 12)
Profit for the year
Dividend paid for 2004 (Note 33)
Exchange differences arising
on consolidation
Dividend paid to minority shareholders
Balance at 31 December 2005

Revenue
Foreign
Reserves/ Currency
(Accumulated Translation
Losses) Reserves
$’000
$’000

Share
Capital &
Reserves
$’000

Share
Capital
$’000

Share
Premium
$’000

Capital
Reserves
$’000

54,822
1,334

13,738
112

15,518
-

128,158
-

(2,085)
-

210,151
1,446

32,401
-

242,552
1,446

13,850
-

(13,850)
-

588

-

-

588

-

588

-

-

776

-

-

776

-

776

-

-

281
(874)
373
-

(373)
43,298
(21,966)

(751)
-

281
(1,625)
43,298
(21,966)

4,300
-

281
(1,625)
47,598
(21,966)

-

-

-

-

(5,612)
-

(5,612)
-

(1,165)
(3,165)

(6,777)
(3,165)

70,006

-

16,662

149,117

(8,448)

227,337

32,371

259,708

109,152
462
(54,792)
-

206,641
1,880
(194,783)
-

14,598
413

(86,091)
194,783
-

(7,245)
-

237,055
2,342
(54,792)
413

29,362
-

266,417
2,342
(54,792)
413

-

-

82

-

-

82

-

82

-

-

1,140
(1,104)
389
-

(389)
38,962
(19,107)

748
-

1,140
(356)
38,962
(19,107)

3,544
-

1,140
(356)
42,506
(19,107)

-

-

-

-

4,412
-

4,412
-

991
(1,496)

5,403
(1,496)

54,822

13,738

15,518

128,158

(2,085)

210,151

32,401

242,552

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 68 to 102 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Minority
Capital
Interests Employed
$’000
$’000

Share
Capital
$’000

Share
Premium
$’000

Revenue
Reserves/
Capital (Accumulated
Reserves
Losses)
$’000
$’000

Total
$’000

The Company
Balance at 1 January 2006
Issue of shares
Transfer of share premium reserve to
share capital account (Note 11)
Cost of share-based payment
Profit for the year
Dividend paid for 2005 (Note 33)

54,822
1,334

13,738
112

9,485
-

61,503
-

139,548
1,446

13,850
-

(13,850)
-

324
-

52,867
(21,966)

324
52,867
(21,966)

Balance at 31 December 2006

70,006

-

9,809

92,404

172,219

109,152
462
(54,792)
-

206,641
1,880
(194,783)
-

9,217
268
-

(180,759)
194,783
66,586
(19,107)

144,251
2,342
(54,792)
268
66,586
(19,107)

54,822

13,738

9,485

61,503

139,548

Balance at 1 January 2005
Issue of shares
Capital reduction
Cost of share-based payment
Profit for the year
Dividend paid for 2004 (Note 33)
Balance at 31 December 2005

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 68 to 102 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

11,732

14,456

6,724
(26)
759
(676)
(803)
(2,040)
15,670

7,235
(5)
267
413
(688)
3,102
24,780

1,975
40,667
(13,703)
44,609
2,232
(5,688)
(2,968)
625
(134)

3,416
(4,504)
(10,878)
12,814
3,132
(4,328)
(2,109)
21,777
(333)

38,676

30,953

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in associated companies
Purchase of other investments
Proceeds from disposal of other investments
Return of capital from other investments
Acquisition of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Dividends received from investments

(71,140)
(403)
3,570
1,013
(3,428)
2,605
40,372

(6,143)
2,692
(3,371)
2,021
18,812

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

(27,411)

14,011

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from share issues
Repayment of short-term loans
Proceeds from long-term loans
Funds to holding and related companies
Funds (to)/from associated companies
Return of capital to shareholders of the company
Dividends paid to shareholders of the company
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries

1,446
(24,990)
40,250
(128)
(1,758)
(21,966)
(3,165)

2,342
(83,603)
61,250
(474)
1,504
(54,792)
(19,107)
(1,496)

Net cash used in financing activities

(10,311)

(94,376)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

954
76,010

(49,412)
125,422

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December (Note A)

76,964

76,010

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of fixed assets
Gain on sale of fixed assets and investment
Share-based payment expense
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial instrument
Gain on dilution of associated companies
Translation of foreign companies
Operating profit before working capital changes
Working capital changes:
Stocks
Debtors
Creditors
Cash from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Proceeds from tax losses transferred under group relief system
Staff compensation and restructuring expenses
Net cash from operating activities

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 68 to 102 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

A.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of fixed deposits, bank balances and cash. Cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:

Fixed deposits
Bank balances and cash

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

69,015
7,949

64,683
11,327

76,964

76,010

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December are as follows:
Group

Malaysian Ringgit
Chinese Renminbi
Philippine Peso
Hong Kong Dollar
US Dollar
Thai Baht
Indonesian Rupiah
Euro

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

18,060
15,013
5,442
4,630
2,333
1,359
575
385

6,564
8,827
5,898
6,650
1,744
343
731
848

Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000
1
-

1
-

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 68 to 102 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.

Corporate information
The Company is a public listed company domiciled and incorporated in Singapore, and its holding company is Keppel
Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in Singapore. The registered office of the Company is located at
1 HarbourFront Avenue, #18-01 Keppel Bay Tower, Singapore 098632. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at 7 Gul Circle, Singapore 629563.
The principal activity of the Company is that of an investment, holding and management company. The principal activities
of major subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled entity are shown in Note 32.

2.

Significant accounting policies
2.1

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of
the Company have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as disclosed in the accounting
policies below.
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Company and are consistent with
those used in the previous financial year.
The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars (S$).

2.2

FRS and INT FRS not yet effective
Certain new accounting standards and FRS interpretations have been published that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The Group’s assessment of those standards and interpretations that
are relevant to the Group is set out below.
FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, and a complementary Amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (Capital Disclosures)
The Group will adopt FRS 107 on 1 January 2007, which is the effective date of the Standard.
FRS 107 introduces new disclosures to improve the information about financial instruments. It requires the
disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments,
including minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk including sensitivity analysis to
market risk. It replaces the disclosure requirements in FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation.
The amendment to FRS 1 introduces disclosures about the level of an entity’s capital and how it manages capital.
The Group has assessed the impact of FRS 107 and the amendment to FRS 1 and concluded that the main
additional disclosures will be the sensitivity analysis to market risk and the capital disclosures required by the
amendment to FRS 1.

2.3

68

Significant accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the financial
statements. They affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on
experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.
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2.4

Currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
(b)

Transactions and balances
Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional
currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary items or on
translating monetary items at the balance sheet date are recognised in the profit and loss account.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

(c)

Translation of group entities’ financial statements
For inclusion in the Group financial statements, the trading results of subsidiaries and associated companies
whose financial statements are denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Singapore Dollars at
the average exchange rates for the year. All assets and liabilities of foreign currency denominated
subsidiaries are translated into Singapore Dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences due to such currency translations are dealt with through foreign currency translation
reserves.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of exchange differences deferred in equity
relating to that foreign operation is recognised in the profit and loss account as a component of the gain or
loss on disposal.

2.5

Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies,
when it directly or indirectly, holds more than 50% of the issued share capital, or controls more than half of
the voting power, or controls the composition of the board of directors.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
(b)

Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all its subsidiaries, all of which
prepare financial statements at 31 December. Consistent accounting policies are applied for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, are
eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group to the date on
which that control ceases.
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interests.
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Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities represents goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of business combination is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date of
acquisition.
Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by the Group.
They are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from the parent shareholders’
equity, and are separately disclosed in the consolidated profit and loss account.
2.6

Associated companies and jointly controlled entity
An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has significant influence and in
whose commercial and financial policy decisions the Group actively participates.
A jointly controlled entity is a company in which the Group has a long-term substantial equity interest and in whose
commercial and financial policy decisions the Group actively participates.
The Group’s investments in associated companies and jointly controlled entity are accounted for using the equity
method. The equity method involves recording investments in associated companies initially at cost, and
recognising the Group’s share of its associated companies’ post-acquisition results and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves against the carrying amount of the investments. After application of the equity method,
the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s net investment in the associated companies and jointly controlled entity. The associated companies and
jointly controlled entity are equity accounted for from the date the Group obtains significant influence until the date
the Group ceases to have significant influence over the investments.
Goodwill relating to an associated company is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associated company’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of the investment is excluded from the carrying amount of the investment and is instead
included as income in the determination of the Group’s share of the associated company’s profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
The most recent available audited financial statements of the associated companies are used by the Group in
applying the equity method. Where the dates of the audited financial statements used are not co-terminous with
those of the Group, the share of results is arrived at from the last audited financial statements available and
unaudited management financial statements to the end of the accounting period.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in associated companies and jointly controlled entity
are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

2.7
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Fixed assets
All items of fixed assets are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, fixed assets are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. An assessment of the carrying value of fixed
assets is made when there are indications that the assets have been impaired or the impairment losses
recognised in prior years no longer exist.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to write off the cost of the fixed assets over their estimated
useful lives after taking the estimated residual values into account. No depreciation is provided for capital
work-in-progress, as these assets are not available for use. The estimated useful lives of fixed assets are as
follows:
Freehold land and buildings
Leasehold land and buildings
Plant and equipment:
Containers
Office furniture and fittings
Other equipment
Motor vehicles:
Prime movers and trailers
Motor cars

-

50 years
over period of lease (ranging from 25 to 73 years)

-

8 years
5 years
1 to 10 years

-

4 to 10 years
4 to 5 years

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to ensure that the
amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of fixed assets.
An item of fixed asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit and loss account in
the year the asset is derecognised.
2.8

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified by the Group as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. Financial assets are recognised on the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On
derecognition of a financial asset the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the profit and
loss account.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at each financial year end.
(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term or if so designated by management. Derivative financial instruments are also classified as
fair value through profit or loss unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the profit and loss account.

(b)

Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss account when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
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(c)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised in the fair value reserve within equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the profit and loss account.
The fair values of instruments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to the relevant Exchange’s quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet
date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques,
such as discounted cash flow analysis. Investments in other unlisted investment funds are recorded at the
net asset value per share as reported by the managers of these funds.

2.9

Impairment
(a) Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of that asset is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount. The impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account unless it
reverses a previous revaluation in which case it will be charged to equity.
Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded if, and only if, there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The carrying amount is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. The reversal is recorded in the profit
and loss account. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the
asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
(b)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the profit and loss account, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

(ii)
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Available-for-sale financial assets
For equity instruments classified as available-for-sale, if any evidence of a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost exists, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from the fair value reserve within
equity and recognised in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the profit and
loss account on equity investments are not reversed through the profit and loss account, until the
equity instruments are disposed of.
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2.10

Stocks and work-in-progress
Stocks are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value after adequate provision is made
for damaged, obsolete or slow-moving stocks.
Work-in-progress comprises uncompleted telecommunications contracts in the course of development. It
comprises costs of materials and direct expenses incurred to-date, less progress payments received and
receivable. Full provision is made for estimated losses to completion where applicable.

2.11

Debtors and other receivables
Debtors and other receivables, including amounts owing by holding and related companies and associated
companies are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables under FRS 39. The accounting policy for this
category of financial assets is stated in Note 2.8.
An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are
written off as incurred. Further details on the accounting policy for impairment of financial assets are stated in
Note 2.9.

2.12

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank and fixed deposits.

2.13

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include creditors, borrowings and other payables. Creditors and other payables are initially
stated at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
All borrowings are initially recognised at the fair values of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

2.14

Derivative financial instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate caps to
hedge its risks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are taken to the profit and loss account for the year.
The fair values of forward currency contracts are determined by reference to current forward exchange rates for
contracts with similar maturity profiles. The fair values of interest rate cap contracts are determined by reference
to market values for similar instruments.

2.15

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.
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2.16

Operating leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of the ownership of the leased
item are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Assets leased out under operating leases are included in leasehold properties. Rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.17

Revenue recognition
Turnover is recognised based on the invoiced value of goods and services rendered and represents warehousing
and container service revenue. It also represents income from telecommunications contracts, installation and
maintenance of communications systems and provision of support services.
The Group recognises contract revenue to the extent of contract costs incurred based on the stage of completion
method. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred to-date to the
estimated total costs for the contract.
Some judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the contract cost incurred, the
estimated total contract revenue and contract cost, as well as the recoverability of the contracts. Total contract
revenue also includes an estimation of the recoverable variation works that are recoverable from the customers.
In making the judgement, the Group evaluates by relying on the assessment of project managers and past
experience.
Interest income is taken into account on an accrual basis and dividend income is recognised when declared to be
payable.

2.18

Employee benefits
(a) Defined contribution plan
The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in which it
has operations. In particular, the Singapore companies in the Group make contributions to the Central
Provident Fund scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to national
pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.
(b)

Employee leave entitlement
Employees’ entitlement to annual leave is recognised when it accrues to the employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability of unconsumed leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the balance sheet date.

(c)

Termination benefits
The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of current employees according to a plan of action.

(d)

Employee share option plan
The Company has an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan whereby options are being granted to
eligible executives of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Keppel T&T Share Option
Scheme 1993. Details of the scheme are disclosed under paragraph 6 of the Directors’ Report.
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
on which the share options are granted. In valuing the share options, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company (“market
conditions”), if applicable.
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The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve, over the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (“the vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The profit or loss charge or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
2.19

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20

Income taxes
The Group has exposure to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in
determining the group-wide provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
(a)

Current taxation
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

(b)

Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation has been provided for under the liability method on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled based on tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associated companies and interest in jointly controlled entity, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that they can be utilised against future taxable
profit.

3.

Turnover
Group turnover excludes inter-company transactions. Turnover of the Group is analysed as follows:
Group

Revenue from sale of goods
Revenue from services rendered
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2006
$’000

2005
$’000

6,604
86,412

22,346
86,098

93,016

108,444
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4.

Operating expenses
Group

Purchase of goods and services
Staff costs
Defined contribution pension plans
Depreciation of fixed assets
Other operating expenses

5.

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

20,935
31,001
2,582
6,724
20,042

35,738
28,354
2,448
7,235
20,213

81,284

93,988

Operating profit
Group
2006
$’000

2005
$’000

280
48

273
36

207
2,924
(26)
(395)
675
622
759
(676)
3,805

216
(1)
2,679
11
(398)
(54)
121
(547)
491
413
(16)
4,010

Operating profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration:
Auditors of the Company (including under provision in prior year)
Other auditors of subsidiaries
Directors’ remuneration
Directors of the Company:
Fees - current year
- prior year
Key managers’ emoluments
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets
Write-back of provision for stock obsolescence
Bad trade debts recovered
Foreign exchange loss
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment) for doubtful debts
Share-based payment expenses
Fair value (gain)/loss on forward contract
Profit on disposal of investment
Operating lease expense
Other professional fees paid to:
Auditors of the Company
Other auditors of subsidiaries
6.

9
-

33
3

Interest income
Group

Interest from deposits and advances with:
Banks
Related companies
Other interest income
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2006
$’000

2005
$’000

1,340
874
337

363
1,849
1,127

2,551

3,339
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7.

Interest expense
Group

Interest on term loans and overdrafts from:
Banks
Related companies
Other interest expense

8.

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

100
5,224
99

728
3,456
196

5,423

4,380

Exceptional items
Group

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, associated companies and other investments
Gain on disposal of properties
Impairment loss in value of investments and equity advances
Impairment loss of assets
Staff compensation and restructuring of operations
Minority share of exceptional items

9.

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

3,208
229
(1,820)
(1,598)
19
1,086

1,170
(1,213)
(1,300)
(238)
(1,581)
17

1,105

(1,564)

Taxation
Group

Current taxation:
Based on profit for the year
Share of taxation of associated companies and jointly controlled entity
Over-provision in respect of prior years
Deferred taxation:
Movements in temporary differences
Benefits from previously unrecognised tax losses and capital allowances
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2006
$’000

2005
$’000

4,539
10,171
(1,117)
13,593

4,731
7,847
(409)
12,169

46
(6,396)

(150)
(5,453)

7,243

6,566
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A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of profit before tax and exceptional items multiplied by the
Singapore statutory tax rate for the years ended 31 December is as follows:
Group
2006
$’000

2005
$’000

Profit before tax and exceptional items

54,822

50,653

Tax at the Singapore statutory rate of 20% (2005: 20%)
Permanent differences
Over-provision in respect of prior years
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax benefits
Utilisation of group relief not recognised previously
Effect of different tax rates in other countries
Others

10,964
4,332
(1,129)
(1,640)
(6,396)
994
118

10,131
2,638
(687)
(1,121)
(5,453)
1,072
(14)

7,243

6,566

The estimated unutilised losses and unabsorbed capital allowances for the Group at 31 December 2006 amounted to
approximately $46,926,000 (2005: $67,793,000) and $18,016,000 (2005: $45,514,000) respectively for which no deferred
tax benefit is recognised due to uncertainty of its recoverability.
The use of these losses and capital allowances is subject to agreement by the tax authorities, and compliance with
certain provisions of the tax legislation of the respective countries in which the companies operate.
A loss-transfer system of group relief (known as “group relief system”) for companies was introduced in Singapore with
effect from Year of Assessment 2003. Under this system, corporate groups may set off the current year unutilised capital
allowances, trade losses and donations (“loss items”) of one Singapore company against the profits of another Singapore
company within the same group, subject to compliance with the relevant rules and procedures and agreement of the
Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore.
The Group intends to transfer tax losses of $5,596,000 (2005: $6,188,000) and unabsorbed capital allowances of
$24,631,000 (2005: $18,600,000) to certain related companies under the group relief system. Consequently, the Group
has recognised a deferred tax credit of $6,396,000 (2005: $5,453,000) in the current year.
Group
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2006
$’000

2005
$’000

Deferred tax liabilities:
Differences in depreciation
Temporary difference

414
470

533
311

Gross deferred tax liabilities

884

844
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10.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share represent the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of the Company divided by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.
Diluted earnings per share represent the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of the Company adjusted for potential
dilutive effects of share options issued by associated companies, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive ordinary shares.
Details of the computation are set out below:
Group
2006
$’000

2005
$’000

Basic

Diluted

Basic

Diluted

42,193

42,193

40,526

40,526

Exceptional items

42,193
1,105

(24)
42,169
1,105

40,526
(1,564)

(138)
40,388
(1,564)

Profit after exceptional items

43,298

43,274

38,962

38,824

Profit attributable to shareholders
before exceptional items
Adjustment for potential dilutive effect of
share options issued by associated companies

Number of shares
‘000
Weighted average number of shares
Adjustment for potential dilutive ordinary shares
Weighted average number of shares used
to compute earnings per share
Earnings per share (cents)
Before exceptional items
After exceptional items

Number of shares
‘000

549,261
-

549,261
645

546,740
-

546,740
708

549,261

549,906

546,740

547,448

7.7
7.9

7.7
7.9

7.4
7.1

7.4
7.1

1,215,000 (2005: 2,025,000) of share options granted to employees under the existing employee share option scheme
have not been included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive for the current and
previous financial years presented.
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11.

Share capital
Group and Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares:
At 1 January:
548,224,537 (2005: 545,761,537) shares

54,822

109,152

1,334

462

-

(54,792)

Transfer from share premium reserve to share capital account

13,850

-

At 31 December:
549,619,537 (2005: 548,224,537) shares

70,006

54,822

1,395,000 (2005: 2,463,000) shares issued
under Keppel T&T Share Option Scheme 1993
Capital reduction of $nil (2005: $0.10) per share

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary
shares carry one vote per share without restriction.
By a resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 29 September 2005, the par value of each ordinary
share was reduced by $0.10 each.
In accordance with the Companies (Amendment) Act 2005, on 30 January 2006, the shares of the Company ceased to
have a par value and the amount standing in the share premium reserve became part of the Company’s share capital.
Keppel T&T share option scheme 1993
Share options are granted to employees under the Keppel T&T Share Option Scheme 1993, which became operative on
5 May 1993.
The exercise price of the share options is equal to the average last business done price for the shares of the Company
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for the three market days preceding the date of offer. The
Remuneration and Share Option Committee may at its discretion fix the exercise price at a discount not exceeding
20 per cent to the above price. None of the options granted in the financial year was granted at a discount.
The vesting of granted options is conditional on the employee completing another 24 months of service. Once the
options are vested, they are exercisable for a contractual option term of 10 years from the date of grant. The options
may be exercised in full or in part in respect of 100 shares or a multiple thereof, on the payment of the exercise price.
The persons to whom the options have been issued, have no right to participate by virtue of the options in any share
issue of any other company. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.
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The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (“WAEP”) of, and movements in, share
options during the year.
Group and Company
2006
Number of
Options
‘000

2005
WAEP
($)

Number of
Options
‘000

3,568
830
(301)
(1,395)

1.21
1.52
1.52
1.04

5,754
885
(608)
(2,463)

1.08
1.05
1.18
0.86

Balance at 31 December

2,702

1.35

3,568

1.21

Exercisable at 31 December

1,147

1.42

2,098

1.40

Balance at 1 January
Granted
Cancelled
Exercised

WAEP
($)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised during the year was $1.54
(2005: $1.30). The options outstanding at the end of the financial year had a weighted average exercise price of $1.35
(2005: $1.21) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.0 years (2005: 6.66 years).
The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was $0.61 (2005: $0.42).
The fair value of share options as at the date of grant, is estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The inputs to the model used for the years
ended 31 December are shown below:
2006
Date of grant
Dividend yield (%)
Expected volatility (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%)
Expected life of options (years)
Underlying share price ($)
Exercise price ($)

2005

07.02.06

08.08.06

08.02.05

08.08.05

2.82
42.92
3.40
10.00
1.42
1.42

2.48
42.78
3.50
10.00
1.61
1.61

3.91
42.30
2.90
10.00
0.90
0.90

2.55
43.17
2.70
10.00
1.37
1.37

The exercise prices for all outstanding options were subsequently adjusted downwards by $0.10 each pursuant to the
Company’s capital reduction exercise in 2005.
The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility as it is assumed to be indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other features of the option grant were incorporated into the measurement of
fair value.
Details of outstanding share options to subscribe to the Company’s shares granted under the Keppel T&T Share Option
Scheme 1993 are set out in paragraph 6 of the Directors’ Report.
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12.

Reserves
Group
2006
$’000
(a)

(b)

Reserves
These comprise:
Share premium account
Share option reserve
Fair value reserve
Hedging reserve
Statutory reserve
Capital reserve
Revenue reserves
Foreign currency translation reserves

Company
2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

1,287
1,736
21
3,362
10,256
149,117
(8,448)

13,738
699
1,834
(260)
2,989
10,256
128,158
(2,085)

784
9,025
92,404
-

13,738
460
9,025
61,503
-

157,331

155,329

102,213

84,726

Movements in reserves
(i)
Share option reserve
Share option reserve represents the equity-settled share options granted to employees. The reserve is made
up of the cumulative value of services rendered by employees recorded on grant of equity-settled share
options.
Group

At 1 January
Cost of share-based payment
At 31 December
(ii)

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

699
588

286
413

460
324

192
268

1,287

699

784

460

Fair value reserve
Fair value reserve records the cumulative fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets until they are
derecognised or impaired.
Group

82

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

At 1 January
Net fair value changes on
available-for-sale financial assets
Transfer to profit and loss account

1,834

2,856

-

-

82
(1,104)

-

-

At 31 December

1,736

1,834

-

-
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(iii)

Hedging reserve
Hedging reserve records the portion of the fair value changes on derivative financial instruments designated
as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges that is determined to be an effective hedge.
Group
2006
$’000
At 1 January
Share of associated company’s
net fair value changes on cash flow hedge
At 31 December

(iv)

Company
2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

(260)

(1,400)

-

-

281

1,140

-

-

21

(260)

-

-

Statutory reserve
Statutory reserve represents amounts set aside in compliance with local laws in certain countries in which the
company operates, and distribution is restricted by those laws.
Group

(v)

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

At 1 January
Transfer from revenue reserves

2,989
373

2,600
389

-

-

At 31 December

3,362

2,989

-

-

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the equity component of bonds that were issued previously.
Group

At 1 January and 31 December

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

10,256

10,256

9,025

9,025

Movements in share premium account, revenue reserves and foreign currency translation reserves are set out in
the Statements of Changes in Equity.
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13.

Fixed assets

Freehold
Land and
Buildings
$’000

Leasehold
Land and
Buildings
$’000

Plant,
Equipment
and
Vehicles
$’000

Capital
Work-inProgress
$’000

Total
$’000

Cost
At 1 January 2005
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification of assets
Exchange differences arising on consolidation

2,127
21
(828)
55

210,786
502
(1,650)
1,487

55,217
2,365
(3,863)
1,176
874

1,452
483
(1,176)
49

269,582
3,371
(6,341)
2,465

At 31 December 2005 and 1 January 2006
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification of assets
Assets written-off
Exchange differences arising on consolidation

1,375
(1,050)
(34)

211,125
193
(1,949)
(1,524)

55,769
3,235
(4,061)
145
(2,435)
(1,123)

808
(184)
(12)

269,077
3,428
(7,060)
(39)
(2,435)
(2,693)

At 31 December 2006

291

207,845

51,530

612

260,278

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2005
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
Impairment loss
Exchange differences arising on consolidation

357
5
(135)
-

85,335
3,431
(484)
1,300
281

44,510
3,799
(3,690)
666

612
-

130,814
7,235
(4,309)
1,300
947

At 31 December 2005 and 1 January 2006
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
Impairment loss
Assets written-off
Exchange differences arising on consolidation

227
1
(5)
(1)

89,863
3,024
(688)
(302)

45,285
3,699
(4,016)
107
(2,383)
(814)

612
-

135,987
6,724
(4,709)
107
(2,383)
(1,117)

At 31 December 2006

222

91,897

41,878

612

134,609

Net book value
At 31 December 2005

1,148

121,262

10,484

196

133,090

At 31 December 2006

69

115,948

9,652

-

125,669

GROUP

In 2005, the Group recognised an impairment loss of $1,300,000 for a leasehold building held by the Investments division,
based on the recoverable amount of the property. The recoverable amount was determined by reference to a desktop
valuation on an open-market basis obtained from an independent professional valuer.
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14.

Subsidiaries
Company
2006
$’000
Unquoted shares, at cost
Less: Loans owing to subsidiaries
Provision for impairment

2005
$’000

213,072
(18,324)
194,748
(116,269)

352,150
(134,306)
217,844
(121,678)

78,479

96,166

The loans owing to subsidiaries are interest-free, unsecured and not expected to be repayable within the next twelve
months.
Information relating to significant subsidiaries consolidated in the financial statements is given in Note 32.
15.

Associated companies and jointly controlled entity
Group

Unquoted shares, at cost
Quoted shares, at cost
Market value: $368,656,000 (2005: $295,544,000)
Provision for impairment
Share of post-acquisition reserves
Advance to associated company

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

248,294
81,123

237,824
20,458

13,857
-

13,857
-

(596)
328,821
(142,570)
186,251
1,989

258,282
(137,732)
120,550
-

(7,184)
6,673
6,673
-

(7,184)
6,673
6,673
-

188,240

120,550

6,673

6,673

Advance to associated company is unsecured and is not repayable within the next twelve months. Interest is charged at
8.25% per annum.
The summarised financial information of associated companies and jointly controlled entity are as follows:
Group

Assets
Liabilities
Revenues
Attributable profit before exceptional items

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

1,722,337
986,215
1,489,352
234,804

1,653,613
893,008
1,369,872
220,852

Included in unquoted shares is the cost of investment attributable to the jointly controlled entity of $5,000,000
(2005: $5,000,000). The current year profit and cumulative share of post-acquisition reserves attributable to the jointly
controlled entity are $16,000 (2005: loss of $504,000) and $1,886,000 (2005: $2,054,000) respectively.
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Information relating to significant associated companies and the jointly controlled entity consolidated in the financial
statements is given in Note 32.
Although the Group holds less than 20 per cent of the voting power in MobileOne Ltd (“M1”) and Asia Airfreight Terminal
Company Limited (“AAT”), the Group exercises significant influence by virtue of its right to appoint two directors to the
board of M1 and one director to the board of AAT.
16.

Other investments
Group

Available-for-sale financial assets:
Shares in corporations (quoted)
Shares in corporations (unquoted)
Other investments

17.

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

735
19,016
55

1,802
21,421
58

19,806

23,281

Long-term receivables
Long-term receivables at year end include finance lease receivable of $26,000 (2005: $138,000) and proceeds receivable
from the sale of the Group’s data centre assets and business in 2003 of $nil (2005: $5,238,000). The sale proceeds
receivable in the next financial year of $5,238,000 (2005: $nil) has been reclassed as short-term receivable under sundry
debtors in Note 19. Subsequent to year end, an amount of $4,452,000 was received.

18.

Stocks and work-in-progress
Group
2006
$’000

2005
$’000

1,118
(184)
934

1,176
29
(114)
1,091

Work-in-progress, at cost:
Cost incurred and attributable profits

2,196

4,014

Total stocks and work-in-progress

3,130

5,105

Stocks, at cost:
Spare parts and consumable stocks
Goods-in-transit
Provision for stock obsolescence
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19.

Debtors
Group

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

Trade debtors
Provision for doubtful debts
Net trade debtors

25,580
(2,535)
23,045

67,636
(3,068)
64,568

-

-

Sundry debtors
Advance to a corporation for investment
Prepayments
Sundry deposits
Interest receivable
Tax receivable
Unbilled receivables
Advances to customers
Derivative assets
Provision for doubtful debts
Net other debtors

19,630
8,193
2,810
532
69
3,674
76
8
34,992
(3,951)
31,041

10,628
8,536
3,062
657
42
3,712
227
168
963
27,995
(3,085)
24,910

1
3
1,723
1,727
1,727

1
3
71
75
75

Total

54,086

89,478

1,727

75

Debtors and other debtors denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December are as follows:
Group

Malaysian Ringgit
Chinese Renminbi
US Dollar
Philippine Peso
Hong Kong Dollar
Thai Baht
Euro
Indonesian Rupiah
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Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

10,443
5,398
4,258
3,020
2,705
1,546
1,529
1,095

53,437
5,523
7,468
3,113
2,030
1,189
858
526

-

-
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20.

Amounts owing by/(to) holding and related companies
Group

Amounts owing by:
Holding company
Trade accounts
Related companies
Non-trade accounts
Trade accounts
Loan accounts
Provision for doubtful debts

Amounts owing to:
Holding company
Non-trade accounts
Related companies
Trade accounts
Non-trade accounts

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

-

7

-

-

165
379
-

184
756
-

52
77,301
(12,833)

30
69
19,101
(18,098)

544

947

64,520

1,102

(47)

(141)

-

-

(482)
-

(662)
-

(53)

(345)

(529)

(803)

(53)

(345)

Trade amounts are repayable within normal trading terms. The non-trade and loan amounts are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. Related companies refer to subsidiaries of Keppel Corporation Limited.
21.

Amounts owing by/(to) associated companies
Group

Amounts owing by associated companies
Trade accounts
Advances
Provision for doubtful debts

Amounts owing to associated companies
Trade accounts
Advances

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2,383
251
(607)

2,135
290
(191)

-

-

2,027

2,234

-

-

(183)
(150)

(13)
(82)

(82)

(82)

(333)

(95)

(82)

(82)

Trade amounts are repayable within normal trading terms.
The advances owing are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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22.

Fixed deposits
Group

Related companies
Banks

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

27,592
41,423

38,572
26,111

21,955
-

36,828
-

69,015

64,683

21,955

36,828

Deposits placed with related companies are made for varying periods of between 1 to 94 days (2005: 14 to 61 days).
These deposits earn interest at rates ranging from 2.25% to 5.03% (2005: 2.88% to 3.00%) per annum.
Deposits placed with banks are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 6 months (2005: 7 days and 9 months)
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group. These deposits earn interest at rates ranging from 1.71%
to 7.75% (2005: 1.71% to 7.00%) per annum.
23.

Creditors
Group

Trade creditors
Advances from minority shareholders of subsidiaries
Deposits from customers
Retention monies
Provision for restructuring costs
Accrued expenses
Interest payable

Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

17,307
456
2,057
276
3,849
26,565
-

32,599
917
2,258
336
3,230
27,345
84

6
777
-

6
807
-

50,510

66,769

783

813

Advances from minority shareholders of subsidiaries are interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.
Trade and other creditors denominated in foreign currencies at 31 December are as follows:
Group

Malaysian Ringgit
Chinese Renminbi
Philippine Peso
Hong Kong Dollar
Euro
Thai Baht
US Dollar
Indonesian Rupiah
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Company

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

8,691
5,906
3,966
2,965
2,059
1,477
971
500

16,009
4,718
3,101
2,293
1,194
571
5,876
1,164

-

-
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Restructuring
Staff compensation and restructuring cost provisions amounting to $3,849,000 (2005: $3,230,000) are in connection with
rationalisation of operations and divestment of non-performing activities. Staff compensation and restructuring cost
provisions are recognised for the expected costs associated with the restructuring of the Group’s activities when a
detailed and formal restructuring plan has been approved, and the restructuring has either commenced or has been
announced publicly. The provision is based on the best estimate of the direct expenditures to be incurred which are both
necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the on-going activities of the Group.
Details of movements in the staff compensation and restructuring cost provisions are as follows:
Group
2006
$’000

2005
$’000

At 1 January
Provided/(written-back) during the year
Utilised during the year
Currency alignment

3,230
646
(36)
9

4,112
(702)
(138)
(42)

At 31 December

3,849

3,230

A net amount of $646,000 was provided mainly due to rationalisation and restructuring of certain overseas operations.
Approximately $2,900,000 of the staff compensation and restructuring provision as at the end of 2006 is expected to be
utilised by the end of 2007 and the balance will be reviewed at the end of 2007.
24.

Short-term borrowings
Group

Current portion of long-term loans from a related company, unsecured (Note 25)
Bank borrowings, unsecured
Loans from a related company, unsecured

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

4,750
50,873

3,750
8,225
68,638

55,623

80,613

Unsecured bank borrowings are repayable within 1 year and bear interest at nil% (2005: 3.65%) per annum.
Unsecured loans from a related company are repayable within 1 year and bear interest at rates ranging from 2.46% to
4.76% (2005: 1.69% to 4.20%) per annum.
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25.

Long-term borrowings
Group

Loans from a related company, unsecured
Less amounts reclassified under current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings (Note 24)

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

106,250

65,000

(4,750)

(3,750)

101,500

61,250

Unsecured loans from a related company include:
(a)

$50,000,000 (2005: $50,000,000) that are repayable in full in December 2009 and bear interest at 3-month swap
offer rate (“SOR”) plus 0.5% (2005: SOR plus 0.4%) ranging from 3.57% to 4.04% (2005: 3.57%) per annum;

(b)

$11,250,000 (2005: $15,000,000) that are repayable over 4 years on a quarterly basis up to December 2009 and
bear interest at SOR plus 0.5% ranging from 3.61% to 4.15% (2005: 3.61%) per annum; and

(c)

$45,000,000 (2005: $nil) that are repayable over 6 years in 24 instalments with a final bullet payment in December
2012 and bear interest of 4.24% at SOR plus 0.6%.

The interest rates of these floating rate loans are repriced at intervals of 3 months.
26.

Related party disclosures
An entity or individual is considered a related party of the Group for the purposes of the financial statements if: (i) it
possesses the ability (directly or indirectly) to control or exercise significant influence over the operating and financial
decisions of the Group or vice versa; or (ii) it is subject to common control or common significant influence.
(a)

Sale and purchase of goods and services
During the year, the Group entered into transactions with related parties on commercial terms, as shown below:

Rendering of
services
2006
2005
$’000
$’000
Holding company
Related companies
Associated companies
Jointly controlled entity

602
4,941
-

816
4,477
-

Receiving of
services
2006
2005
$’000
$’000
(12)
(733)
(39)
(15)

(20)
(710)
(8)
(13)

Management
fees
received/(paid)
2006
2005
$’000
$’000
(199)
35

(501)
57
(4)

Rental of
premises
2006
2005
$’000
$’000
5
591
151
-

5
426
152
-

Other transactions entered by the Group with related parties are disclosed in Notes 6 & 7.
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(b)

Compensation of key management personnel
Group

Short-term employee benefits
Pension and post-employment medical benefits
Share-based payments

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2,497
76
558

2,397
88
409

3,131

2,894

No share options of the Company have been granted to the Company’s directors.
27.

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure not provided for in the financial statements in respect of contracts placed for:
Group

Purchases of shares in other companies
Purchases of software

28.

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

9,644
59

10,979
275

9,703

11,254

Lease commitments
(a)

Operating lease commitments as lessor
A subsidiary has entered into property leases on its leasehold properties. These non-cancellable leases have
remaining non-cancellable lease terms of between 1 month and 5 years.
Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases are as follows:
Group

Years after year end:
Within one year
After one but within five years
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2006
$’000

2005
$’000

7,580
3,105

8,954
6,240

10,685

15,194
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(b)

Operating lease commitments as lessee
The Group has entered into operating lease agreements largely for leasehold properties. These non-cancellable
leases have remaining lease terms of between 1 month and 34 years.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Group

Years after year end:
Within one year
After one but within five years
After five but within ten years
After ten years

29.

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

3,498
11,935
12,204
31,874

3,537
12,057
12,894
33,587

59,511

62,075

Contingent liabilities
Group

Guarantees in respect of bank facilities granted to associated companies
Legal claims

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

344

1,370
595

344

1,965

Legal claims were lodged against a subsidiary in respect of a dispute over subcontractor bills and damages allegedly
caused by equipment supplied to a customer. The subsidiary is of the view that no material losses will arise in respect of
these legal claims.
30.

Segment analysis
At 31 December 2006, the Group is organised into three main business segments namely the Network Engineering,
Logistics and Investments.
The Network Engineering segment provides in-building network designs, network optimisation and geographical
information system (GIS) services in Asean, Europe and the US.
The Logistics segment provides warehousing, distribution, container storage and repairs and freight forwarding services
operating mainly in Singapore, Malaysia and China.
The Investments segment is the investment holding arm of other telecommunications entities within the Group such as
MobileOne Ltd.
The Group’s analysis of geographical segments is based on the location in which the Group’s activities are carried out.
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax and deferred tax assets
and liabilities, interest-bearing loans and related expenses.
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Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third
parties. Segment revenue, expenses and results include transfers between business segments. These transfers are
eliminated on consolidation.
2006
Business segments
Network
Engineering
$’000

Logistics
$’000

Investments
$’000

Sales to third parties
Inter-segment sales

30,484
5,822

61,099
4,722

1,433
-

(10,544)

93,016
-

Consolidated sales

36,306

65,821

1,433

(10,544)

93,016

5,737
1,104
(189)

8,556
467
(1,213)

(2,561)
980
(4,021)

11,732
2,551
(5,423)

3,470
10,122
(2,753)
7,369
(1,587)

7,396
15,206
(640)
14,566
(1,741)

35,096
29,494
3,412
32,906
(3,915)

45,962
54,822
19
54,841
(7,243)

5,782

12,825

28,991

47,598

4,561
(1,667)
2,894
2,888

11,986
(640)
11,346
1,479

25,646
3,412
29,058
(67)

42,193
1,105
43,298
4,300

5,782

12,825

28,991

47,598

Operating profit/(loss)
Interest income
Interest expense
Share of results of associated companies
and jointly controlled entity
Profit before tax and exceptional items
Exceptional items
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Profit before exceptional items
Exceptional items
Minority interests

Other information
Segment assets
Investment in associated companies
and jointly controlled entity
Total

70,318

164,261

103,345

(55,672)

282,252

28,928
99,246

32,473
196,734

126,839
230,184

(55,672)

188,240
470,492

Segment liabilities
Tax provision and deferred taxation
Total

64,119
223
64,342

100,553
809
101,362

99,495
1,257
100,752

(55,672)
(55,672)

208,495
2,289
210,784

Net assets

34,904

95,372

129,432

-

259,708

385
823
107

2,998
5,630
-

45
271
-

Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Impairment losses
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3,428
6,724
107

2006
By geographical location

Sales to third parties
Total assets
Capital expenditure

Singapore
$’000

Far East
and ASEAN
other than
Singapore
$’000

Others
$’000

Consolidated
Total
$’000

48,658
292,480
2,159

38,541
167,305
1,123

5,817
10,707
146

93,016
470,492
3,428

2005
Business segments
Network
Engineering
$’000

Logistics
$’000

Investments
$’000

Adjustments/ Consolidated
Eliminations
Total
$’000
$’000

Sales to third parties
Inter-segment sales

47,193
7,592

60,076
5,294

1,175
-

(12,886)

108,444
-

Consolidated sales

54,785

65,370

1,175

(12,886)

108,444

Operating profit
Interest income
Interest expense
Share of results of associated companies
and jointly controlled entity
Profit before tax and exceptional items
Exceptional items
Profit before taxation
Taxation

7,189
1,097
(550)

7,198
220
(870)

69
2,022
(2,960)

14,456
3,339
(4,380)

1,969
9,705
(689)
9,016
(2,397)

6,253
12,801
(35)
12,766
(1,555)

29,016
28,147
(857)
27,290
(2,614)

37,238
50,653
(1,581)
49,072
(6,566)

Profit for the year

6,619

11,211

24,676

42,506

4,851
(689)
4,162
2,457

10,136
(18)
10,118
1,093

25,539
(857)
24,682
(6)

40,526
(1,564)
38,962
3,544

6,619

11,211

24,676

42,506

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Profit before exceptional items
Exceptional items
Minority interests
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2005
Other information
Segment assets
Investment in associated companies
and jointly controlled entity
Total
Segment liabilities
Tax provision and deferred taxation
Total
Net assets
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Impairment losses

Network
Engineering
$’000

Logistics
$’000

Investments
$’000

Adjustments/ Consolidated
Eliminations
Total
$’000
$’000

109,834

163,361

87,915

(25,589)

335,521

27,309
137,143

19,519
182,880

73,722
161,637

(25,589)

120,550
456,071

102,312
1,794
104,106

49,241
578
49,819

83,566
1,617
85,183

(25,589)
(25,589)

209,530
3,989
213,519

33,037

133,061

76,454

-

242,552

676
1,097
-

2,456
5,871
-

239
267
1,300

3,371
7,235
1,300

By geographical location

Sales to third parties
Total assets
Capital expenditure

Singapore
$’000

Far East
and ASEAN
other than
Singapore
$’000

Others
$’000

Consolidated
Total
$’000

45,778
249,008
781

57,027
197,137
2,125

5,639
9,926
465

108,444
456,071
3,371

Notes:
(a)
Pricing of inter-segment sales is at fair market value.
(b)
Net assets employed by segments are those identifiable assets less liabilities that are used in the operation of each segment as at the end of
the financial year.
(c)
Share of associated companies’ results and investments in associated companies are included in the results and net assets employed in the
appropriate segments.
(d)
Analysis by geographical location is based on the locations in which the Group’s activities are carried out.

31.

Financial risk management
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise loans and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including interest rate caps and forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources of financing.
It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in derivative financial instruments
shall be undertaken.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and
credit risk. The Group’s policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below. The Group’s accounting
policies in relation to derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 2.14.
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Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to investments in fixed deposits and
debt obligations. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its investment in fixed deposits.
The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The Group uses interest rate
caps to hedge its variable interest rates for long-term debts. The Group is in a net interest expense position during the
financial year.
The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments
that are exposed to floating interest rates:
Within
1 year
$’000

1-2
years
$’000

2-3
years
$’000

3-4
years
$’000

4-5 More than
years
5 years
$’000
$’000

Group
Fixed deposits
Loan to associated company
Loans from a related company

69,015
(55,623)

1,989
(4,750)

(54,750)

(1,000)

(1,000)

Company
Fixed deposits

21,955

-

-

-

-

-

21,955

Group
Fixed deposits
Interest rate caps
Loans from a related company
Bank loans

64,683
8
(72,388)
(8,225)

(53,750)
-

(3,750)
-

(3,750)
-

-

-

64,683
8
(133,638)
(8,225)

Company
Fixed deposits

36,828

-

-

-

-

-

36,828

Total
$’000

2006

69,015
1,989
(40,000) (157,123)

2005

Foreign currency risk
The Group has exposure to foreign exchange risk as a result of transactions denominated in foreign currencies, arising
from normal trading and investment activities, primarily the Chinese Renminbi, Malaysian Ringgit, Philippine Peso and
Hong Kong Dollar.
When a natural hedge is not available, it is the Group’s policy to hedge these risks using appropriate financial instruments
with the objective of limiting the effect of changes in foreign currency fluctuations.
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As at 31 December, the Group had outstanding foreign currency swap transaction to hedge foreign currency as follows:
2006
$’000

2005
$’000

-

2,311
13,868

-

16,179

Within one year
After one but within five years

The estimated fair value of the foreign currency swap as at 31 December 2006 is $nil (2005: $955,000).
Liquidity risk
The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management by maintaining sufficient cash and available funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
The Group’s funding is obtained from bank loans, overdraft facilities and borrowings from holding and related companies.
Credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the counter-parties fail to perform their obligations as of
31 December 2006 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets, other than derivatives, is the carrying amount
of those assets as indicated in the balance sheet, and is generally limited to the amounts, if any, by which the
counter-party’s obligations exceed the obligations of the Group.
It is the Group’s policy to enter into financial instruments with a diversity of credit-worthy counter-parties. The Group
does not expect to incur material credit losses on its financial assets or other financial instruments.
Concentration of credit risk exist when changes in economic, industry or geographical factors similarly affect the group
of counter-parties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total credit exposure.
The Group’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified along industry, product and geographic lines, and
transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counter-parties, thereby mitigating any significant concentration
of credit risk.
Fair values
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged or settled between
knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Financial instruments carried at fair value
The Group has carried all long-term investments that are classified as available-for-sale financial assets, and all derivative
financial instruments, at their fair value as required by FRS 39.
Financial instruments whose carrying amount approximate fair value
Management has determined that the carrying amount of cash and short-term deposits, current trade and other
receivables, current trade and other payables, based on their notional amount, reasonably approximate their fair values
because these are mostly short-term in nature.
Management has determined that the carrying amount of long-term borrowings reasonably approximate their fair values
because they bear interest at rates which approximate the current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of lending
and borrowing arrangement.
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Methods and assumptions used to determine fair values
The methods and assumptions used by management to determine fair values of financial instruments other than those
whose carrying amounts reasonably approximate their fair values as mentioned earlier, are as follows:

32.

Financial assets and liabilities

Methods and assumptions

(a)

Quoted investments/
Derivative financial instruments

Fair value has been determined by reference to stock exchange
quoted market prices at the close of business on the balance sheet
date and external valuation statements on the balance sheet date
without factoring in transaction costs.

(b)

Long-term receivables

Fair value has been estimated by discounting the expected proceeds
based on the subsidiary’s bank average prime lending rate of 5% at
the close of business on the balance sheet date.

(c)

Unquoted investments

Fair value has been determined based on the net asset value per share
as reported by the managers of these funds.

Subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled entity
Information relating to the major subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly controlled entity whose results are
included in the financial statements are shown below:
Effective
Equity
Interest
2006
2005
%
%

Cost of
Investment
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Country of
Incorporation Principal
and Operation Activities

Subsidiaries
Network Engineering
ECHO Broadband Gmbh=*

100

100

9,010

41

Keppel Communications Philippines Inc#*

100

100

7,752

7,752

Keppel Communications Pte Ltd*

100

100

32,300

PT Trisilco Folec Indonesia=*

52.3

52.3

624
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Germany

Broadband
network services

Philippines

Marketing,
installation and
maintenance of
communications
systems

-

Singapore

Trading and
provision of
communications
systems and
accessories

624

Indonesia

Provision of global
network services
and project delivery
market services
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Effective
Equity
Interest
2006
2005
%
%

Cost of
Investment
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Country of
Incorporation Principal
and Operation Activities

Trisilco Folec Philippines Inc#*

55

55

344

344

Philippines

Marketing,
installation and
maintenance of
communications
systems

Trisilco Folec Pte Ltd*

55

55

275

275

Singapore

Trading and
provision of
communications
systems and
accessories

Trisilco Folec Sdn Bhd=*

55

55

27

27

Malaysia

Trading and
provision of
communications
systems and
accessories

Logistics
Keppel Logistics Pte Ltd

100

100

42,534

87,530

Singapore

Warehousing and
distribution

Keppel Logistics (Foshan) Limited#

70

70

15,645

15,645

China

Shipping
operations,
warehousing and
distribution

Keppel Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited#*

70

70

4,102

4,102

Hong Kong

Freight forwarding
and shipping
agencies

100

100

-

-

Hong Kong

Investment holding

50

50

10,000

10,000

Singapore

Warehousing and
distribution

Investments
Adfact Pte Ltd

100

100

17,435

17,435

Singapore

Investment holding

Apsilon Ventures Pte Ltd

100

100

75,101

75,101

Singapore

Investment holding

DataOne (Asia) Pte Ltd

100

100

26,500

-

Singapore

Investment holding

Keppel IHT Investment Ltd+

100

100

26,864

26,864

Keppel Telecoms Pte Ltd*

100

100

32,301

120,582

Steamers (HK) Limited=
Transware Distribution Services Pte Ltd*
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Telecommunications
services and
investment holding

Effective
Equity
Interest
2006
2005
%
%

Cost of
Investment
2006
2005
$’000
$’000

Country of
Incorporation Principal
and Operation Activities

Associated companies
Network Engineering
SVOA Public Company Ltd=*

Trisilco Radiance Communications
Sdn Bhd=*

Logistics
Asia Airfreight Terminal
Company Limited#

Wuhu Annto Logistics
Company Limited#*

Investments
Advanced Research Group Co Ltd=*

Computer Generated Solutions Inc=*

MobileOne Ltd*

31.4

31.1

10,375

10,171

Thailand

Distribution of IT
products and
telecommunications
services

40

40

184

184

Malaysia

Sales, installation
and maintenance of
telecommunications
systems, equipment
and accessories

10

10

6,621

6,621

Hong Kong

Operation of an air
cargo handling
terminal

35

-

10,475

-

China

Transportation,
warehousing and
distribution

45

45

28,400

28,400

Thailand

IT publication and
business information

20.5

20.5

142,965

142,965

USA

IT consulting and
outsourcing provider

17

14.1

78,982

18,521

Singapore

Telecommunications
services

50

50

5,000

5,000

Singapore

Distribution and
maintenance of
communications
equipment and
systems

Jointly controlled entity
Network Engineering
Radiance Communications Pte Ltd*

Notes:
(a)
All companies are audited by Ernst & Young, Singapore except for the following:
= Audited by associated firms of Ernst & Young, Singapore.
# Audited by other firms of Certified Public Accountants.
+ Not required to be audited by law in country of incorporation.
(b)
The companies indicated with an asterisk (*) are indirectly held by Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd
(c)
Information relating to subsidiary companies that were acquired or disposed during the financial year is as follows:
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Net Attributable
Assets on
Date of Disposal
$’000

Effective Date

Companies struck off/de-registered
DataOne Corporation Pte Ltd
Global Space Investments Limited
33.

30.05.06
21.07.06

-

Dividends paid and proposed
Group and Company
2006
2005
$’000
$’000
Dividend paid
Final dividend of 4.0 cents (2005: 3.5 cents) per share, tax exempt one-tier

21,966

19,107

The directors propose that a final dividend of 5.5 cents (2005: 4.0 cents) per ordinary share amounting to approximately
$30,229,000 (2005: $21,966,000) be paid for the year ended 31 December 2006.
34.

Subsequent event
On 1 February 2007, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary DataOne (Asia) Pte Ltd (“DataOne Asia”)
acquired a 50% stake in the European datacentre operator, Premier Data Centres Limited (“PDC”) which was
wholly-owned by Real Capital International Limited (“RCI”). DataOne Asia paid Euro 10.5 million to RCI in consideration
of RCI assigning 50% of the loan capital and Euro 1.0 million for subscription of 500 new shares in PDC. DataOne Asia
also granted a shareholder’s loan of Euro 0.5 million to PDC. The purchase consideration was arrived at on a willing buyer,
willing seller basis.

35.

Authorisation of financial statements
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the directors on 21 February 2007.
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Statement by the directors

We, TEO SOON HOE and LAM KWOK CHONG, being two of the Directors of Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd,
do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors:
(a)

the accompanying balance sheets, consolidated profit and loss account, statements of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement together with the notes thereto set out on pages 62 to 102 are drawn up so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2006, and the results,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then
ended; and

(b)

at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts
as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board

TEO SOON HOE
Chairman

LAM KWOK CHONG
Managing Director

Singapore, 21 February 2007
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Independent auditors’ report

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 102, which comprises the balance sheets of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2006, the statements of changes in equity of the Group and the Company, the profit and loss
account and cash flow statement of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.
Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion,
(i)

the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the
Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2006 and the
results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on
that date; and

(ii)

the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries incorporated
in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

ERNST & YOUNG
Certified Public Accountants
Audit Partner: Tan Wee Khim
Singapore, 21 February 2007
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Corporate governance

The Company believes in having high standards of corporate governance, and is committed to making sure that effective selfregulatory corporate practices exist to protect the interests of its shareholders and maximise long term shareholder value.
By way of continuing improvement of its governance practices and to facilitate close guidance by the board in ensuring that a
robust risk management system is maintained, a Board Risk Committee was formed in January 2007. Details of the composition
and responsibilities of this Committee can be found on page 114.
As required by the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”), the following report describes
the Company’s corporate governance practices with specific reference to the principles and guidelines set out in the Code of
Corporate Governance 20051 (the “Code”).
Board’s conduct of affairs
Principle 1: Effective board to lead and control the company
The board’s responsibility is to oversee the business, assets, affairs and performance of the Company in the best interest of its
shareholders. The principle functions of the board are to:
-

decide on matters in relation to the Group’s activities which are of a significant nature, including decisions on strategic
directions and guidelines and the approval of periodic plans and major investments and divestments;
oversee the business and affairs of the Company, establish, with management, the strategies and financial objectives to be
implemented by management, and monitor the performance of management;
oversee processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and compliance, and
satisfy itself as to the adequacy of such processes;
assume responsibility for corporate governance.

All directors are expected to exercise independent judgment in the best interests of the Company. This is one of the
performance criteria for the peer and self assessment of the effectiveness of the individual directors. Based on the results of the
peer and self assessment carried out by the directors, all directors have discharged this duty consistently well.
To assist the board in the discharge of its oversight function, various board committees, namely the Divestment and New
Investment Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nominating Committee and the Remuneration and Share Option Committee,
have been constituted with clear written terms of reference. All the Committees are actively engaged and play an important role
in ensuring good corporate governance in the Company and within the Group. In addition, a Board Risk Committee was recently
formed in January 2007. The terms of reference of the respective board committees are disclosed in the Appendix to this report.
The board is scheduled to meet six times in 2007. However, adhoc non-scheduled board meetings are convened to deliberate
on urgent substantive matters. Telephonic attendance and conference via audio-visual communication at board meetings are
allowed under the Company’s Articles of Association. In 2006, five board meetings were convened. The directors’ attendance at
board and board committee meetings held in 2006 is set out in the Appendix to this report.
The Company has adopted internal guidelines setting forth matters that require board approval. Under these guidelines,
investments, acquisitions and disposals exceeding $30 million by any Group company, and all commitments to term loans and
lines of credit from banks and financial institutions by the Company, require the approval of the board. Further, investments or
acquisitions of $30 million and below but which do not have strategic fit with the Company’s core business but which are
considered strategic investments for the long-term prospects of the Company, would require specific board approval. Each
board member has equal responsibility to oversee the business and affairs of the Company. Management on the other hand is
responsible for the day-to-day operation and administration of the Company in accordance with the policies and strategy set by
the board.

1

The Code of Corporate Governance 2005 issued by the Ministry of Finance on 14 July 2005.
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A formal letter is sent to newly-appointed directors upon their appointment explaining their duties and obligations as director.
All newly-appointed directors also undergo an orientation programme which includes management presentations on the Group’s
businesses and strategic plans and objectives. The directors are provided with continuing education in areas such as corporate
governance, changes in financial reporting standards and industry-related matters so as to update and refresh them on matters
that affect their performance as board or board committee members.
Board composition and guidance
Principle 2: Strong and independent element on the board
The board currently has a majority of independent directors, with a total of seven directors, five of whom are considered
independent2 by the Nominating Committee.
The Nominating Committee determines on an annual basis whether or not a director is independent, bearing in mind the Code’s
definition of an “independent director” and guidance as to relationships the existence of which would deem a director not to be
independent.
The Nominating Committee is of the view that taking into account the nature and scope of the Company’s operations, the
current size of the board is appropriate for the time being for the board to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively. The
Nominating Committee is of the view that the board comprise of directors who as a group provide core competencies such as
accounting or finance, business or management experience, industry knowledge, strategic planning experience and customerbased experience or knowledge, required for the board to be effective.
The nature of the current directors’ appointments on the board and details of their membership on board committees are set out
in the Appendix hereto. The profile of each of the directors is set out on pages 20 to 24.
The board and management fully appreciate that fundamental to good corporate governance is an effective and robust board
whose members engage in open and constructive debate and challenge management on its assumptions and proposals, and
that for this to happen, the board, in particular, the non-executive directors, must be kept well informed of the Company’s
businesses and affairs and be knowledgeable about the industry in which the businesses operate. The Company has therefore
adopted initiatives to put in place processes to ensure that the non-executive directors are well supported by accurate, complete
and timely information, have unrestricted access to management, and have sufficient time and resources to discharge their
oversight function effectively.
The non-executive directors meet regularly without the presence of management to discuss matters such as the changes they
would like to see in board processes, corporate governance initiatives and the performance of the Chief Executive Officer.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Principle 3: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to be separate persons to ensure appropriate balance of power and
authority, increased accountability and greater capacity of the board for independent decision making
The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate to ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased
accountability and greater capacity of the board for independent decision making.
The Chairman, with the assistance of the Company Secretaries, schedules meetings and prepares meeting agenda in consultation
with the Chief Executive Officer, to enable the board to perform its duties responsibly having regard to the flow of the
Company’s business and operations. The Chairman monitors the flow of information from management to the board to ensure
that all directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. He also encourages constructive relations between the board
and management, and between the executive and non-executive directors. The Chairman also assists in ensuring compliance
with corporate governance guidelines set by the Company, and that sound corporate governance practices are put in place.
The Chairman also ensures effective communication with shareholders.
2

The Code defines an “independent” director as one who has no relationship with the company, its related companies or its officers that could interfere, or be
reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the director’s independent business judgment with a view to the best interests of the company. A
related company in relation to a company includes its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, or parent company.
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Board membership
Principle 4: Formal and transparent process for appointment of new directors to the board
Nominating Committee
The Company has established a Nominating Committee to, among other things, make recommendations to the board on all
board appointments. The Nominating Committee comprises three directors, two of whom (including the Chairman) are
independent, namely:
Dr Tan Tin Wee
Professor Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Mr Teo Soon Hoe

Chairman
Member
Member

Process for appointment of new directors
The Nominating Committee recommended, and the board approved, a formal process for the selection of new directors to
increase transparency of the nominating process in identifying and evaluating nominees for directors. The Nominating
Committee leads the process and makes recommendations to the board as follows:
a.

b.
c.
c.

Nominating Committee evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the board and, in the light of such
evaluation and in consultation with management, prepares a description of the role and the essential and desirable
competencies for a particular appointment.
External help (for example, Singapore Institute of Directors, search consultants, open advertisement) to be used to source
for potential candidates if need be. Directors and management may also make suggestions.
Nominating Committee meets with short-listed candidates to assess suitability and to ensure that the candidate(s) are
aware of the expectations and the level of commitment required.
Nominating Committee makes recommendations to the board for approval.

Criteria for appointment of new directors
All new appointments of directors are subject to the recommendation of the Nominating Committee based on the following
objective criteria:
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

Integrity
Independent mindedness
Diversity – Possess core competencies that meet the current needs of the Company and complement the skills and
competencies of the existing directors on the board
Ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties and responsibilities effectively – the proposed director is on not more
than six principal boards
Track record of making good decisions
Experience in high-performing companies
Financial literacy

The Nominating Committee also is charged with the responsibility of re-nomination of directors, having regard to the director’s
contribution and performance (such as attendance, preparedness, participation and candour), with reference to the results of the
assessment of the performance of the individual director by his peers for the previous financial year.
The directors submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals of at least once every three years. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the directors retire from office at the Company’s annual general meeting,
and a newly appointed director must submit himself for re-election at the annual general meeting immediately following his
appointment.
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As a matter of policy, a non-executive director would serve a maximum of two three-year terms of appointment. However, the
board recognises the contribution of directors who over time have developed deep insight into the Group’s businesses and
operations and who are therefore able to provide invaluable contribution to the board as a whole. In such cases, the board would
exercise its discretion to extend the term and retain the services of the director rather than lose the benefit of his contribution.
The Nominating Committee is also charged with determining the “independence” status of the directors annually. Please refer
to page 106 for the basis of the Nominating Committee’s determination as to whether a director should or should not be deemed
independent.
The Nominating Committee also determines annually whether a director with multiple board representations is able to and has
been adequately carrying out his duties as a director of the Company. The Nominating Committee took into account the results
of the assessment of the effectiveness of the individual director, and the respective directors’ actual conduct on the board, in
making the determination, and is satisfied that all the directors have been able to and have adequately carried out their duties as
director notwithstanding their multiple board representations.
The Nominating Committee has adopted internal guidelines addressing competing time commitments that are faced when
directors serve on multiple boards. As a guide, directors should not serve on more than six principal boards.
The following key information regarding directors is set out in the following pages of this Annual Report:
Pages 20 to 24: Academic and professional qualifications, directorships and chairmanships both present and past held over the
preceding five years in other listed companies and other major appointments;
Page 118: Board committees served on (as a member or Chairman), date of first appointment as director, date of last re-election
as director, whether appointment is executive or non-executive, whether considered by the Nominating Committee to be
independent; and
Pages 58 and 59: Shareholding in the Company and its subsidiaries.
Board performance
Principle 5: Formal assessment of the effectiveness of the board as a whole and the contribution by each director to the
effectiveness of the board
The board has implemented formal processes for assessing the effectiveness of the board as a whole, the contribution by each
individual director to the effectiveness of the board, as well as the effectiveness of the Chairman of the board.
To ensure that the assessments are done promptly and fairly, the board has appointed an independent third party (the
“Independent Co-ordinator”) to assist in collating and analysing the returns of the board members. Mr Chaly Mah, Managing
Partner of Deloitte & Touche, was appointed for this role.
The evaluation processes and performance criteria are set out in the Appendix to this report.
The board assessment exercise provided an opportunity to obtain constructive feedback from each director on whether the
board’s procedures and processes allowed him to discharge his duties effectively and the changes which should be made to
enhance the effectiveness of the board as a whole. The assessment exercise also helped the directors to focus on their key
responsibilities. The individual director assessment exercise allowed for peer review with a view to raising the quality of board
members. It also assisted the Nominating Committee in determining whether to re-nominate directors who were due for
retirement at the next annual general meeting, and in determining whether directors with multiple board representations were
nevertheless able to and had adequately discharged their duties as directors of the Company.
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Access to information
Principle 6: Board members to have complete, adequate and timely information
As a general rule, board papers are required to be sent to directors at least seven days before the board meeting so that the
members may better understand the matters prior to the board meeting and discussion may be focused on questions that the
board has about the board papers. However, sensitive matters may be tabled at the meeting itself or discussed without any
papers being distributed. Managers who can provide additional insight into the matters at hand would be present at the relevant
time during the board meeting. The directors are also provided with the names and contact details of the Company’s senior
management and the Company Secretaries to facilitate direct access to senior management and the Company Secretaries.
The Company fully recognises that the continual flow of relevant information on an accurate and timely basis is critical for the
board to be effective in the discharge of its duties. Management is therefore expected to provide the board with accurate
information in a timely manner concerning the Company’s progress or shortcomings in meeting its strategic business objectives
or financial targets and other information relevant to the strategic issues facing the Company.
Management also provides the board members with management accounts on a monthly basis. Such reports keep the board
informed, on a balanced and understandable basis, of the Group’s performance, financial position and prospects and consist of
the consolidated profit and loss accounts, analysis of sales, operating profit, pre-tax and attributable profit by major divisions
compared against the budgets, together with explanation given for significant variances for the month and year-to-date.
Subject to the approval of the Chairman, directors, whether as a group or individually, may seek and obtain independent
professional advice to assist them in their duties, at the expense of the Company.
The Company Secretaries administer, attend and prepare minutes of board proceedings. They assist the Chairman to ensure
that board procedures (including but not limited to assisting the Chairman to ensure the timely and good information flow to the
board and the board committees, and between senior management and the non-executive directors, and facilitating orientation
and assisting in the professional development of the directors) are followed and regularly reviewed to ensure effective
functioning of the board, and that the Company’s memorandum and articles of association and relevant rules and regulations,
including requirements of the Companies Act, Securities & Futures Act and the SGX Listing Manual, are complied with. They
also assist the Chairman and the board to implement and strengthen corporate governance practices and processes with a view
to enhancing long-term shareholder value. They are also the primary channel of communication between the Company and SGX.
The appointment and removal of the Company Secretaries are subject to the approval of the board.
Remuneration matters
Principle 7: Formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing
remuneration packages of individual directors
Principle 8: Remuneration of directors should be adequate but not excessive
Principle 9: Disclosure on remuneration policy, level and mix of remuneration, and procedure for setting remuneration
Remuneration and Share Option Committee
The Remuneration and Share Option Committee consist of three non-executive directors, two of whom (including the Chairman)
are independent, namely:
Professor Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Dr Tan Tin Wee
Mr Teo Soon Hoe
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The Remuneration and Share Option Committee is responsible for ensuring a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors and senior management. The
Committee assists the board to ensure that remuneration policies and practices are sound in that they are able to attract, retain
and motivate without being excessive, and thereby maximising shareholder value. The Committee recommends to the board
for endorsement a framework of remuneration (which covers all aspects of remuneration including directors’ fees, salaries,
allowances, bonuses, options and benefits in kind) and the specific remuneration packages for each director. The Committee
also reviews the remuneration of senior management and administers the Keppel T&T Share Option Scheme 1993
(the “Scheme”).
The Committee has access to expert advice in the field of executive compensation outside the Company where required.
Annual remuneration report
Policy in respect of non-executive directors’ remuneration
The non-executive directors are paid directors’ fees, the amount of which is dependent on their level of responsibilities. Each
non-executive director is paid a basic fee. In addition, non-executive directors who perform additional services through board
committees are paid an additional fee for such services. The members of the Audit Committee are paid a higher fee than the
members of the other board committees because of the heavier responsibilities and more frequent meetings required of them.
The Chairman of each board committee is also paid a higher fee compared with members of that board committee in view of the
higher responsibility carried by that office. The executive director is not paid directors’ fees. The amount of directors’ fees
payable to non-executive directors is subject to shareholders’ approval at the Company’s annual general meetings. The
framework for determining directors’ fees for non-executive directors is as follows:

Non-executive Chairman
Non-executive director
Audit Committee
Other Board Committees

Chairman
Member
Chairman
Member

Annual Retainer
$35,000
$25,000
$12,000
$6,000
$8,000
$4,000

Ratio to Retainer of $20,000
1.75
1.25
0.60
0.30
0.40
0.20

Remuneration policy of executive director and other key executives
The Company advocates a performance-based remuneration system that is highly flexible and responsive to the market, the
Company’s and the individual employee’s performance.
The total remuneration mix comprises of three key components, that is, annual fixed cash, annual performance incentive and
long-term incentive. The annual fixed cash component comprises the annual basic salary plus any other fixed allowances. The
annual performance incentive is tied to the Company’s and the individual employee’s performance, inclusive of a portion which is
tied to EVA performance3. The long-term incentive is in the form of share options which are granted based on the individual
employee’s performance and contribution.
The compensation structure is designed such that the percentage of an executive’s annual total remuneration at risk increases as
one moves up the corporate ladder. However, to remain competitive and relevant, the Company aims to benchmark its annual
fixed salary at market median with the variables being strictly performance driven.

3

A portion of the annual performance incentive is tied to EVA performance whereby a portion from the current year EVA and a portion from accrued EVA bank
are paid out provided EVA remains positive. The balance will be accrued as EVA Bank and this bank is at risk and can become negative should EVA
performance be adversely impacted.
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Level and mix of remuneration of directors and key executives (who are not also directors) for the year ended
31 December 2006
The level and mix of each of the directors’ remuneration, and that of the key executives (who are not also directors), in bands of
$250,000 are set out below:

Remuneration band &
name of director

Base/
fixed salary

Variable or
performance
related
income/bonuses

Directors’ fees

Benefits-in-kind

Share
options
granted

32%

33%

-

-

35%4

-

-

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

-

-

Base/
fixed salary

Variable or
performance
related
income/bonuses

Directors’ fees

Benefits-in-kind

Share
options
granted

65%
63%
70%
66%
67%
68%

22%
24%
18%
21%
18%
22%

-

-

13%
13%
12%
13%
15%
10%

67%

27%

2%

3%

1%

Above $750,000
Lam Kwok Chong
Above $500,000 to $750,000
NIL
Above $250,000 to $500,000
NIL
Below $250,000
Teo Soon Hoe
Tan Tin Wee
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Reggie Thein
Wee Sin Tho

Remuneration band &
name of key executive
Above $500,000 to $750,000
NIL
Above $250,000 to $500,000
Wong Chee Choy
Bruno Lopez
Vincent Ko Woon Chun
Quek Keng Liang
Loi Ah Noi
Ngiam Share Ching
Below $250,000
Peter Yeow Soo Hiang

Remuneration of employees who are immediate family members of a Director or the Chief Executive Officer
No employee of the Company and its subsidiaries was an immediate family member of a director or the Chief Executive Officer
and whose remuneration exceeded $150,000 during the financial year ended 31 December 2006. “Immediate family member”
means the spouse, child, adopted child, step-child, brother, sister and parent.
Details of the Keppel T&T Share Option Scheme 1993
The Scheme, which has been approved by shareholders of the Company, is administered by the Remuneration and Share Option
Committee. Please refer to pages 59, 60, 80 and 81 for details of the Scheme.

4

Received Keppel Corporation Limited share options.
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Accountability and audit
Principle 10: The board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects
Principle 11: Establishment of Audit Committee with written terms of reference
The board is responsible for providing a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects, including interim and other price sensitive public reports, and reports to regulators (if required).
The board has embraced openness and transparency in the conduct of the Company’s affairs, whilst preserving the commercial
interests of the Company. Financial reports and other price sensitive information are disseminated to shareholders through
announcements via SGXnet to SGX, press releases, the Company’s website, and in the case of financial results, through media
and analyst briefings where appropriate. The Company’s Summary Financial Report is sent to all shareholders and its Annual
Report is available on request and accessible at the Company’s website.
Management provides the board members with management accounts on a monthly basis. Such reports keep the board
informed of, on a balanced and understandable basis, the Group’s performance, position and prospects and consist of the
consolidated profit and loss accounts, analysis of sales, operating profit, pre-tax and attributable profit by major divisions
compared against the budgets, together with explanation given for significant variances for the month and year-to-date.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises entirely of independent non-executive directors:
Mr Reggie Thein
Chairman
Dr Tan Tin Wee
Member
Mr Wee Sin Tho
Member
Messrs Reggie Thein (Chairman of the Committee) and Wee Sin Tho have accounting and related financial management
expertise and experience. The board considers the other member, Dr Tan Tin Wee, as having sufficient financial management
knowledge and experience to discharge his responsibilities as a member of the Committee.
The Audit Committee’s main role is to assist the board to ensure integrity of financial reporting and that there is in place sound
internal control systems. The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are set out in the Appendix to this report.
The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any matters within its terms of reference, full access to and
co-operation of the management, full discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings, and reasonable
resources to enable it to discharge its functions properly. Keppel Corporation Limited’s Group Internal Audit (“Group Internal
Audit”), together with the external auditors, report their findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee independently.
During the year, the Audit Committee met with both Group Internal Audit and the external auditors separately without the
presence of management.
During the year, the Audit Committee performed independent review of the financial statements of the Company before the
announcement of the Company’s quarterly and full-year financial results. In the process, the Committee reviewed the key areas
of management judgement applied in adequate provisioning and disclosure, critical accounting policies and any significant
changes made that would have a great impact on the financials.
The Audit Committee also reviewed and approved both Group Internal Audit’s and the external auditor’s plans to ensure that the
plans covered sufficiently in terms of audit scope in reviewing the significant internal controls of the Company. Such significant
controls comprise financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management. All audit findings and recommendations
presented by Group Internal Audit and the external auditors were also reviewed during Audit Committee meetings, and
significant issues were discussed.
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In addition, the Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of the external auditors through discussions with
the external auditors as well as reviewed the non-audit fees awarded to them, and has confirmed that the non-audit services
performed by the external auditors would not affect their independence.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy of the internal audit function by assessing the number of the internal auditors
and their credentials to ensure that the team is suitably qualified and adequately resourced to discharge their duties effectively,
and confirmed that the internal audit team is adequately resourced, and has appropriate standing within the Company.
The Company has in place the “Keppel: Whistle-Blower Protection Policy” (“Policy”) which provides the mechanism by which
employees and any persons who have dealings with the Group may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting or other matters. The Audit Committee reviewed the Policy and was satisfied that arrangements are in
place for independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up actions.
On a quarterly basis, the Audit Committee reviewed the interested person transactions (“IPTs”) reported by management in
accordance with the Company’s shareholders’ mandate for IPTs. The IPTs were reviewed by Group Internal Audit. All findings
were reported during the Audit Committee meetings.
Internal controls and risk management
Principle 12: Sound system of internal controls
The Company has developed a broad risk management framework across the Group to provide a structured process in
identifying the risks pertaining to the Group’s operations on a regular basis. The risk management framework aims to provide the
Audit Committee (and the Board Risk Committee from January 2007 onwards), and in turn the board, with the assurance that the
major risks facing the Group have been identified and assessed, and that there are controls either in place or planned to mitigate
these risks. Under the risk management framework, business units periodically identify potential events, assess risks and
establish responses, thereby reducing the occurrence of surprises, possible losses, loss in business opportunities and time for
recovery from operational disruptions.
The Company has set up a Pandemic Flu Business Continuity Management (PFBCM) Committee to focus on the development
of pandemic flu response plans and procedures to prepare businesses to return to normal operations soonest possible with
minimum interruption. All significant business operations are at different stages of developing the pandemic flu business
continuity procedures (PFBCP) and test runs will be conducted to determine the readiness of these operations in the event of a
pandemic flu outbreak.
Group Internal Audit and the external auditors conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the Company’s material internal
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management. Any material non-compliance or failures
in internal controls and recommendations for improvements are reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee also
reviews the effectiveness of the actions taken by management on the recommendations made by Group Internal Audit and
the external auditors in this respect.
During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk management procedures and
was satisfied that the Company’s risk management processes and internal controls are adequate to meet the needs of the
Company in its current business environment.
The system of internal controls and risk management established by the Company are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failure in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives. Management is involved in regular reviews of the
risks that are significant to the fulfillment of the objectives of the business. However, it should be recognised that such systems
are designed to provide reasonable assurance, but not an absolute guarantee against material misstatement or loss.
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Board Risk Committee
In January 2007, as part of the effort to further strengthen the Company’s risk management processes, a Board Risk Committee
was formed, comprising three independent directors (including the Chairman), Messrs Wee Sin Tho (Chairman), Reggie Thein
and Tan Boon Huat. The Board Risk Committee will assist the board in examining the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management system to ensure that a robust risk management system is maintained. The Board Risk Committee is responsible
for reviewing and guiding management in the formulation of risk policies and processes to effectively identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks. The Committee will report to the board on material findings and recommendations in respect of
significant risk matters. The detailed terms of reference of this Committee are set out in the Appendix to this report.
Internal audit
Principle 13: Independent internal audit function
The role of Group Internal Audit is to assist the Audit Committee to ensure that the Company maintains a sound system of
internal controls by regular monitoring of key controls and procedures and ensuring their effectiveness, undertaking
investigations as directed by the Audit Committee, and conducting regular in-depth audits of high risk areas. Staffed by suitably
qualified executives, Group Internal Audit has direct access to the Audit Committee and reports to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee on all issues of concern.
As a corporate member of the Singapore branch of the Institute of Internal Auditors Incorporated, USA (“IIA”), Group Internal
Audit is guided by the Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by the IIA. These standards consist of
attribute, performance and implementation standards. The professional competence of Group Internal Audit is maintained
through Group Internal Audit’s continuing professional development programme for its staff which includes updating auditors’
knowledge of auditing techniques and sending them to attend continuing professional courses conducted by external accredited
organisations.
During the year, Group Internal Audit adopted a risk-based auditing approach that focuses on material internal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls. Audits were carried out on all significant business units in the Group, including
limited review performed on dormant and inactive companies. All internal audit reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for
deliberation with copies of these reports extended to the Chairman and the relevant senior management. In addition, Group
Internal Audit’s summary of findings and recommendations are discussed at the Audit Committee meetings.
Communications with shareholders
Principle 14: Regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders
Principle 15: Greater shareholder participation at annual general meetings
In addition to the matters mentioned above in relation to “Accountability and Audit”, the Group Corporate Communications
Department of Keppel Corporation Limited (with assistance from the Group Finance and Group Legal Departments of Keppel
Corporation Limited, when required) regularly communicates with shareholders and receives and attends to their queries and
concerns.
Material information is disclosed in a comprehensive, accurate and timely manner via SGXnet and the press. To ensure a level
playing field and provide confidence to shareholders, unpublished price sensitive information are not selectively disclosed, and on
the rare occasions when such information are inadvertently disclosed, they are immediately released to the public via SGXnet
and the press.
Shareholders are informed of shareholders’ meetings through notices published in the newspapers and reports or circulars sent
to all shareholders. Shareholders are invited at such meetings to put forth any questions they may have on the motions to be
debated and decided upon. If any shareholder is unable to attend, he is allowed to appoint up to two proxies to vote on his behalf
at the meeting through proxy forms sent in advance.
At shareholders’ meetings, each distinct issue is proposed as a separate resolution.
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The Chairman of each board committee is required to be present to address questions at the annual general meeting. External
auditors are also present at the annual general meeting to assist the directors to address shareholders’ queries, if necessary.
The Company is not implementing absentia voting methods such as by mail, e-mail or fax until security, integrity and other
pertinent issues are satisfactorily resolved.
The Company Secretaries prepare minutes of shareholders’ meeting, which incorporates substantial comments or queries from
shareholders and responses from the board and management. These minutes are available to shareholders upon request.
Securities Transactions
Insider Trading Policy
The Company has a formal policy on dealings in the securities of the Company, which sets out the implications of insider trading
and guidance on such dealings. The policy has been distributed to all directors and officers. It has also adopted the best
practices on securities dealings issued by the SGX. In line with these best practices, the Company issues circulars to its
directors and officers informing that the Company and its officers must not deal in listed securities of the Company a month
before the release of the full-year results and two weeks before the release of the quarterly results, as the case may be, and if
they are in possession of unpublished material price-sensitive information.
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APPENDIX
Board Committees – Terms of Reference
A.

Divestment and New Investment Committee
(1) Consider, evaluate, review and, if deemed fit, approve investments, acquisitions and disposal of assets of the
Company and its subsidiaries of up to S$30,000,000 per investment or divestment.
(2) Review and recommend to the Board proposed investments, acquisitions and disposals of assets of the Company
and its subsidiaries which are above S$30,000,000 per investment or divestment.
(3) Review and recommend to the Board proposed investments and acquisitions of the Company and its subsidiaries
which do not fall within the Company's core business but which are considered strategic investments for the longterm prospects of the Company.
(4) Sub-delegate any of its powers within its terms of reference as listed above, from time to time, as this Committee
may deem fit.

B.

Audit Committee
(1) Examine the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that a sound system of internal controls is maintained.
(2) Review audit plans and reports of the external auditors and internal auditors, and consider the effectiveness of
actions or policies taken by management on the recommendations and observations.
(3) Review financial statements and formal announcements relating to financial performance, and review significant
financial reporting issues and judgements contained in them, to ensure integrity of such statements and
announcements.
(4) Review the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually.
(5) Review the nature and extent of non-audit services performed by the auditors.
(6) Meet with external auditors and internal auditors, without the presence of management, at least annually.
(7) Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor,
and approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor.
(8) Review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.
(9) Ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the company,
at least annually.
(10) Review arrangements by which employees of the Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters, to ensure that arrangements are in place for the
independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow up action.
(11) Review interested person transactions.
(12) Investigate any matters within the Audit Committee's purview, whenever it deems necessary.
(13) Report to the Board on material matters, findings and recommendations.
(14) Perform such other functions as the Board may determine.
(15) Sub-delegate any of its powers within its terms of reference as listed above from time to time as this Committee
may deem fit.

C.

Nominating Committee
(1) Recommend to the Board the appointment/re-appointment of directors.
(2) Annual review of skills required by the Board, and the size of the Board.
(3) Annual review of independence of each director, and to ensure that the Board comprises at least one-third
independent directors.
(4) Decide, where a director has multiple board representation, whether the director is able to and has been adequately
carrying out his duties as director of the Company.
(5) Decide how the Board’s performance may be evaluated, and propose objective performance criteria to assess
effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each director.
(6) Annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and individual directors.
(7) Review succession plan including identification and management of talent.
(8) Sub-delegate any of its powers within its terms of reference as listed above, from time to time, as this Committee
may deem fit.
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D.

Remuneration and Share Option Committee
(1) Recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration for board members and key executives.
(2) Determine specific remuneration packages for each director and the chief executive officer (if the chief executive
officer is not an executive director).
(3) Decide the early termination compensation (if any) of directors.
(4) Consider whether directors should be eligible for benefits under long-term incentive schemes (including weighing
the use of share schemes against the other types of long-term incentive scheme)
(5) Review the terms, conditions and remuneration of the senior management.
(6) Administer the Company’s employee share option scheme (the “KTT Share Option Scheme”) in accordance with
the rules of the scheme.
(7) Grant share options under the KTT Share Option Scheme as this Committee may deem fit.
(8) Sub-delegate any of its powers within its terms of reference as listed above, from time to time, as this Committee
may deem fit.
Save that a member of this Committee shall not be involved in the deliberations in respect of any remuneration,
compensation, options or any form of benefits to be granted to him.

E.

Board Risk Committee
(1) Review and guide the Group in formulating its risk policies.
(2) Discuss risk mitigation strategies with management.
(3) Examine the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system to ensure that a robust risk management
system is maintained.
(4) Review and guide in establishing a process to effectively identify, evaluate and manage significant risks.
(5) Review risk limits, where applicable.
(6) Review the Group’s risk profile periodically.
(7) Provide a forum for discussion on risk issues.
(8) Report to the Board on material matters, findings and recommendations.
(9) Perform such other functions as the Board may determine.
(10) Sub-delegate any of its powers within its terms of reference as listed above from time to time as this Committee
may deem fit.

Attendance at board meetings
Board Committee Meetings

Director
Teo Soon Hoe
Tan Tin Wee
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Reggie Thein
Wee Sin Tho
Lam Kwok Chong
No. of meetings held in 2006
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Board
Meetings

Audit

4 of 5
5
4 of 5
5
4 of 5
5
5

4
4
3 of 4
4

Remuneration
and Share
Nominating
Option
1 of 2
2
2
2

1
1
1
1
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Divestment
and New
Investment

NonExecutive
Directors’
Meeting

1 of 2
2
2
2
2

0 of 1
1
1
1
1
1

117

Corporate governance

Nature of current directors’ appointments and membership on board committees

Director
Teo Soon Hoe
Lam Kwok Chong
Tan Tin Wee
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Reggie Thein
Wee Sin Tho
Tan Boon Huat6

Board
Membership
Non-Executive Chairman
& Non-Independent
Executive Director
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent
Independent

Audit

Board Committee Membership
Remuneration
Divestment
and Share
and New
Nominating
Option
Investment

Board Risk5

-

Member

Member

Chairman

-

Member
Chairman
Member
-

Chairman
Member
-

Member
Chairman
-

Member
Member
Member
-

Member
Chairman
Member

Details of initial appointment and last re-election of the directors

Name
Teo Soon Hoe

Age

Position

57

Lam Kwok Chong

Non-Executive
Chairman
52 Executive Director

Tan Tin Wee
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Reggie Thein
Wee Sin Tho
Tan Boon Huat

45
63
66
58
55

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Date of intial
appointment

Date of last
re-election

23.8.1988 (Director)
26.4.2005
4.3.1997 (Chairman)
1.4.2004 (Director &
23.4.2004
Managing Director)
7.9.2000
25.4.2006
1.4.2003
25.4.2006
26.6.2003
23.4.2004
1.2.2005
26.4.2005
17.1.2007 Not applicable

Board performance
Evaluation processes
Board
Each board member is required to complete a Board Evaluation Questionnaire and send the Questionnaire directly to the
Independent Co-ordinator within five working days. An “Explanatory Note” is attached to the Questionnaire to clarify the
background, rationale and objectives of the various performance criteria used in the Board Evaluation Questionnaire with the aim
of achieving consistency in the understanding and interpretation of the questions. Based on the returns from each of the
directors, the Independent Co-ordinator prepares a consolidated report and briefs the Chairman of the Nominating Committee on
the report. The Independent Co-ordinator will, together with the Chairman of the Nominating Committee, brief the Chairman of
the board on the report. Thereafter, the Independent Co-ordinator will present the report to the board for discussion on the
changes which should be made to help the board discharge its duties more effectively.

5
6

Board Risk Committee was formed on 23 January 2007.
Appointed as Director on 17 January 2007 and appointed Board Risk Committee member on 23 January 2007.
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Individual directors
The board differentiates the assessment of an executive director from that of a non-executive director.
In the case of the assessment of the executive director, each non-executive director is required to complete the executive
director’s assessment form and send the form directly to the Independent Co-ordinator within five working days. It is
emphasised that the purpose of the assessment is to assess the executive director on his performance on the board (as
opposed to his executive performance). The executive director is not required to perform a self, nor a peer, assessment. Based
on the returns from each of the non-executive directors, the Independent Co-ordinator prepares a consolidated report and briefs
the Chairman of the Nominating Committee on the report. The Independent Co-ordinator will then, together with the Chairman
of the Nominating Committee, brief the Chairman of the board on the report. Thereafter, the Independent Co-ordinator will
present the report for discussion at a board meeting, following which the Chairman of the Nominating Committee will meet with
the executive director to provide necessary feedback on his board performance with a view to improving his board performance
and shareholder value.
As for the assessment of the performance of the non-executive directors, each director (both non-executive and executive) is
required to complete the non-executive directors’ assessment form and send the form directly to the Independent Co-ordinator
within five working days. Each non-executive director is also required to perform a self-assessment in addition to a peer
assessment. Based on the returns, the Independent Co-ordinator prepares a consolidated report and briefs the Chairman of the
Nominating Committee. The Independent Co-ordinator will then, together with the Chairman of the Nominating Committee,
brief the Chairman of the board on the report. Thereafter, the Independent Co-ordinator will present the report for discussion at a
board meeting. Following the meeting, the Chairman of the Nominating Committee will meet with non-executive directors
individually to provide the necessary feedback on their respective performance with a view to improving their board performance
and shareholder value.
Chairman
The Chairman Evaluation Form is completed by each non-executive director (other than the Chairman) and sent directly to the
Independent Co-ordinator within five working days. Based on the returns from each of the non-executive directors, the
Independent Co-ordinator prepares a consolidated report and briefs the Chairman of the Nominating Committee on the report.
The Independent Co-ordinator will then, together with the Chairman of the Nominating Committee, brief the Chairman of the
board on the report. Thereafter, the Independent Co-ordinator will present the report for discussion at a board meeting.
Performance criteria
The performance criteria for the board evaluation are in respect of board size and composition, board independence, board
processes, board information and accountability, management in diversity, board performance in relation to discharging its
principal functions, board committee performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities set out in their respective terms
of reference, and financial targets which includes return on capital employed, return on equity, debt/equity ratio, dividend pay-out
ratio, economic value added, earnings per share and total shareholder return (i.e dividends plus share price increase over the year).
The individual director’s performance criteria are categorized into five segments; namely, (1) interactive skills (under which factors
as to whether the director works well with other directors, and participates actively are taken into account); (2) knowledge (under
which factors as to the director’s industry and business knowledge, functional expertise, whether he provides valuable inputs, his
ability to analyse, communicate and contribute to the productivity of meetings, and his understanding of finance and accounts are
taken into consideration); (3) director’s duties (under which factors as to the director’s board committee work contribution,
whether the director takes his role of director seriously and works to further improve his own performance, whether he listens
and discusses objectively and exercises independent judgment, and meeting preparation are taken into consideration); (4)
availability (under which the director’s attendance at board and board committee meetings, whether he is available when needed,
and his informal contribution via e-mail, telephone, written notes etc are considered); and (5) overall contribution, bearing in mind
that each director was appointed for his/her strength in certain areas which, taken together with the skill sets of the other
directors, provides the board with the required mix of skills and competencies.
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The assessment of the Chairman of the board is based on his ability to lead, whether he established proper procedures to ensure
the effective functioning of the board, whether he ensured that the time devoted to board meetings were appropriate (in terms
of number of meetings held a year and duration of each board meeting) for effective discussion and decision-making by the
board, whether he ensured that information provided to the board was adequate (in terms of adequacy and timeliness) for the
board to make informed and considered decisions, whether he guides discussions effectively so that there is timely resolution
of issues, whether he ensured that meetings are conducted in a manner that facilitates open communication and meaningful
participation, and whether he ensured that board committees are formed where appropriate, with clear terms of reference, to
assist the board in the discharge of its duties and responsibilities.
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Code of Corporate Governance 2005
Specific Principles and Guidelines for Disclosure
Page Reference
in this report

Relevant Guideline or Principle
Guideline 1.3
Delegation of authority, by the board to any board committee, to make decisions
on certain board matters

Pages 105, 116 and 117

Guideline 1.4
The number of board and board committee meetings held in the year, as well as the attendance
of every board member at these meetings

Page 117

Guideline 1.5
The type of material transactions that require board approval under internal guidelines

Page 105

Guideline 2.2
Where the company considers a director to be independent in spite of the existence of a relationship
as stated in the Code that would otherwise deem him as non-independent, the nature of the
director’s relationship and the reason for considering him as independent should be disclosed

Not Applicable

Guideline 3.1
Relationship between the Chairman and CEO where they are related to each other

Not Applicable

Guideline 4.1
Composition of nominating committee

Page 107

Guideline 4.5
Process for selection and appointment of new directors to the board

Page 107

Guideline 4.6
Key information regarding directors, which directors are executive, non-executive or considered
by the nominating committee to be independent

Pages 20 to 24 and 118

Guideline 5.1
Process for assessing the effectiveness of the board as a whole and the contribution of each
individual director to the effectiveness of the board

Pages 118 and 119

Principle 9
Clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of remuneration, procedure for setting
remuneration and link between remuneration paid to directors and key executives, and performance

Pages 110 and 111
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Guideline 9.1
Composition of remuneration committee

Page 109

Guideline 9.2
Names and remuneration of each director. The disclosure of remuneration should be in bands
of $250,000. There will be a breakdown (in percentage terms) of each director’s remuneration
earned through base/fixed salary, variable or performance-related income/bonuses, benefits in kind,
and stock options granted and other long-term incentives. Names and remuneration of at least
the top five key executives (who are not also directors). The disclosure should be in bands
of $250,000 and include a breakdown of remuneration

Page 111

Guideline 9.3
Remuneration of employees who are immediate family members of a director or the CEO,
and whose remuneration exceed $150,000 during the year. The disclosure should be made in bands
of $250,000 and include a breakdown of remuneration

Page 111

Guideline 9.4
Details of employee share schemes

Pages 59, 60, 80 and 81

Guideline 11.8
Composition of audit committee and details of the committee’s activities

Pages 112, 113 and 116

Guideline 12.2
Adequacy of internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management systems

Pages 113 and 114
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Interested person transactions

Interested person transactions carried out during the financial year pursuant to the Shareholders’ Mandate obtained under
Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST) by the Group are as follows:

Name of Interested Person

Aggregate value of all
interested person transactions
during the financial year under
review (excluding transactions
less than $100,000 and
transactions conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of the
SGX Listing Manual)

Aggregate value of all
interested person transactions
conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of the
SGX Listing Manual

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

General transactions
CapitaLand Limited
Singapore Telecommunications Limited
Singapore Power Limited
Temasek Holdings Group – others

-

-

1,871
-

119
2,236
313
110

Treasury transactions
Keppel Corporation Limited

-

-

50,184

59,744

Management services
Keppel Corporation Limited

-

-

500

500

-

-

52,555

63,022

Save as disclosed under Corporate Governance, in the Directors’ Report and in the Financial Statements, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not enter into any material contracts involving the interests of the directors or controlling shareholder since the
end of the previous financial year and no such material contracts still subsist at the end of the financial year.
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Shareholding statistics
As at 1 March 2007

Issued and Fully Paid-up Capital: $70,210,511.36
Class of Shares: Ordinary Shares with equal voting rights
No. of
Shareholders

%

No. of
Shares

%

411
4,683
630
12

7.17
81.64
10.98
0.21

160,252
15,736,384
25,099,800
508,835,101

0.03
2.86
4.57
92.54

5,736

100.00

549,831,537

100.00

5,292
364
80

92.26
6.35
1.39

547,549,239
1,691,035
591,263

99.58
0.31
0.11

5,736

100.00

549,831,537

100.00

442,935,526
29,533,390
12,446,500
4,821,097
3,929,033
3,814,370
3,748,196
1,893,000
1,812,000
1,534,859
1,347,130
1,020,000
1,000,000
783,319
769,783
724,000
589,880
489,228
418,849
413,027

80.56
5.37
2.26
0.88
0.71
0.69
0.68
0.34
0.33
0.28
0.25
0.19
0.18
0.14
0.14
0.13
0.11
0.09
0.08
0.08

514,023,187

93.49

Size of Shareholdings
1 - 999
1,000 - 10,000
10,001 - 1,000,000
1,000,001 and above

Location of Shareholders
Singapore
Malaysia
Others

Twenty Largest Shareholders
1.
Keppel Corporation Limited
2.
Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd
3.
UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd
4.
DBS Nominees Pte Ltd
5.
HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd
6.
Merrill Lynch (Singapore) Pte Ltd
7.
United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd
8.
Agus Anwar
9.
Lim & Tan Securities Pte Ltd
10.
OCBC Nominees Singapore Private Limited
11.
Kim Eng Securities Pte. Ltd.
12.
AMEX Nominees (S) Pte Ltd
13.
DBSN Services Pte Ltd
14.
Selat Pte Limited
15.
OCBC Securities Private Ltd
16.
Hong Leong Finance Nominees Pte Ltd
17.
DB Nominees (S) Pte Ltd
18.
DBS Vickers Securities (S) Pte Ltd
19.
Island Investment Company Pte Ltd
20.
Asia Chemical Corporation Sdn Bhd

Information based on the Register of Substantial Shareholders
Direct Interest
No. of Shares
%
Substantial Shareholders
1.
Keppel Corporation Limited
2.
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited(1)
3.
Kapital Asia Pte Ltd(2)
4.
Agus Anwar(3)
5.
Tjia Marcel Han Liong(3)

442,935,526
-

80.56
-

Deemed Interest
No. of Shares
%
442,935,526
40,367,000
40,367,000
40,367,000

Total Interest
No. of Shares

80.56
7.34
7.34
7.34

442,935,526
442,935,526
40,367,000
40,367,000
40,367,000

%

80.56
80.56
7.34
7.34
7.34

Notes:
(1) The interest of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited arises from its shareholdings in Keppel Corporation Limited.
(2) The interest of Kapital Asia Pte Ltd is deemed through UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd, SBS Nominees Pte Ltd and Bank Morgan Stanley AG, Zurich.
(3) The interests of Agus Anwar and Tjia Marcel Han Liong arises from their controlling interests in Kapital Asia Pte Ltd.

Based on the information available to the Company as at 1 March 2007, approximately 12% of the issued shares of the Company
is held by the public and therefore, pursuant to Rules 1207 and 723 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited, it is confirmed that at least 10% of the ordinary shares of the Company is at all times held by the public.
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Share prices and turnover

Share Prices (S$)

Turnover (million units)

3.5

3.0

2.5

2.0

1.5

1.0

0.5

0.0
2002
Turnover

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

High and Low Prices

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

16.0

3.5

6.7

7.1

7.9

Dividends per share (cents)

4.3

3.0

3.5

4.0

5.5

Share price (cents)
Highest
Lowest
Average

121
71
96

93
73
83

89
77
83

150
80
115

183
128
156

Dividend yield (%) (Note 2)

4.5

3.6

4.2

3.5

3.5

Net price earnings ratio (Note 2)

6.0

23.7

12.4

16.2

19.7

0.40

0.40

0.43

0.38

0.41

Earnings per share (cents) (Note 1)

Net tangible assets ($)

Notes:
1. Earnings per share are based on Group profit after tax and minority interests but before extraordinary items and on the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year.
2.

In calculating dividend yields and price earnings ratios, the average share prices have been used.
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Notice of annual general meeting/closure of books

eppel T&T
Keppel Telecommunications & Transportation Ltd
Co Reg No: 196500115G
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

ALL MEMBERS ARE CORDIALLY INVITED TO ATTEND the annual general meeting of Keppel Telecommunications &
Transportation Ltd (the “Company”) to be held at Four Seasons Hotel, Four Seasons Ballroom A, 2nd Floor, 190 Orchard
Boulevard, Singapore 248646 on Wednesday, 25 April 2007 at 4.00 p.m. to transact the following business:
As ordinary business
Resolution 1
To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2006.
Resolution 2
To declare a first and final dividend of 5.5 cents per share tax exempt one-tier for the year ended 31 December 2006
(2005: 4.0 cents per share tax exempt one-tier).
Resolution 3
To re-elect Mr Wee Sin Tho who retires in accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association and who, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election (see Note 2).
Resolution 4
To re-elect Mr Lam Kwok Chong who retires in accordance with Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association and who,
being eligible, offers himself for re-election (see Note 2).
Resolution 5
To re-elect Mr Tan Boon Huat who, being appointed by the board of directors after the last annual general meeting, will retire in
accordance with Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of Association and who, being eligible, offers himself for re-election
(see Note 2).
Resolution 6
To approve Directors’ fees of $207,000 for the year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: $216,000).
Resolution 7
To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.
As special business
To consider and, if thought fit, approve with or without modification, the following resolutions which will be proposed as Ordinary
Resolutions:
Resolution 8
That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act (Chapter 50) and Article 52(2) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to:
(1)

(i)

issue shares in the capital of the Company (“Shares”) whether by way of right, bonus or otherwise, and including
any capitalisation pursuant to Article 139 of the Company’s Articles of Association of any sum for the time being
standing to the credit of any of the Company’s reserve accounts or to the credit of the profit and loss account or
otherwise available for distribution; and/or

(ii)

make or grant offers, agreements or options that might or would require Shares to be issued (including but not
limited to the creation and issue of (as well as adjustments to) warrants, debentures or other instruments
convertible into Shares) (collectively, “Instruments”),
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at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors may in their
absolute discretion deem fit; and
(2)

(notwithstanding that the authority so conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) issue Shares in
pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while the authority was in force,

provided that:
(a)

the aggregate number of Shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including Shares to be issued in pursuance of
Instruments made or granted pursuant thereto and any adjustments effected under any relevant Instrument), does not
exceed 50 per cent. of the issued Shares in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph
(b) below), of which the aggregate number of Shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the
Company (including Shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution and any
adjustments effected under any relevant Instrument) does not exceed 20 per cent. of the issued Shares in the capital of
the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (b) below);

(b)

for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of Shares that may be issued under sub-paragraph (a) above, the
percentage of issued Shares in the capital shall be calculated based on the issued Shares in the capital of the Company as
at the date of the passing of this Resolution after adjusting for:
(i)

new Shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities or employee share options or vesting
of share awards outstanding or subsisting as at the date of the passing of this Resolution; and

(ii)

any subsequent consolidation or sub-division of Shares;

(c)

in exercising the power to make or grant Instruments (including the making of any adjustments under the relevant
Instrument), the Company shall comply with the provisions of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) for the time being in force (unless such compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST) and the
Articles of Association for the time being of the Company; and

(d)

(unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting), the authority conferred by this Resolution shall continue in
force until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company or the date by which the next annual
general meeting is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier (see Note 3).

Resolution 9
That:
(1)

for the purposes of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore (the “Act”), the exercise by the Directors of the
Company of all the powers of the Company to purchase or otherwise acquire issued ordinary shares fully paid in the
capital of the Company (the “Shares”) not exceeding in aggregate the Maximum Limit (as hereafter defined), at such
price(s) as may be determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time up to the Maximum Price (as hereafter
defined), whether by way of:
(a)

market purchase(s) (each a “Market Purchase”) on the SGX-ST; and/or

(b)

off-market purchase(s) (each an “Off-Market Purchase”) in accordance with any equal access scheme(s) as may be
determined or formulated by the Directors as they consider fit, which scheme(s) shall satisfy all the conditions
prescribed by the Act;

and otherwise in accordance with all other laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the provisions of the Act and
listing rules of the SGX-ST as may for the time being be applicable, be and is hereby authorised and approved generally
and unconditionally (the “Share Buy-Back Mandate”);
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(2)

unless varied or revoked by the members of the Company in a general meeting, the authority conferred on the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the Share Buy-Back Mandate may be exercised by the Directors of the Company at any time
and from time to time during the period commencing from the date of the passing of this Resolution and expiring on the
earlier of:
(a)

the date on which the next annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) is held or is required by law to be
held; or

(b)

the date on which the purchases or acquisitions of Shares by the Company pursuant to the Share Buy-Back
Mandate are carried out to the full extent mandated,

whichever is the earlier;
(3)

in this Resolution:
“Maximum Limit” means that number of issued Shares representing 10 per cent. of the total number of issued Shares as
at the date of the last AGM or at the date of the passing of this Resolution, whichever is higher, unless the Company has
effected a reduction of the share capital of the Company in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act, at any
time during the Relevant Period, in which event the issued ordinary share capital of the Company shall be taken to be the
amount of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as altered (excluding any treasury shares that may be held by
the Company from time to time);
“Relevant Period” means the period commencing from the date on which the last AGM was held and expiring on
the date the next AGM is held or is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier, after the date of this
Resolution; and
“Maximum Price”, in relation to a Share to be purchased or acquired, means the purchase price (excluding
brokerage, stamp duties, commission, applicable goods and services tax and other related expenses) which shall
not exceed:
(a)

in the case of a Market Purchase, 5 per cent. above the Average Closing Price; and

(b)

in the case of an Off-Market Purchase pursuant to an equal access scheme, 20 per cent. above the Average
Closing Price,

where:
“Average Closing Price” means the average of the closing market prices of a Share over the last five (5) Market
Days (a “Market Day” being a day on which the SGX-ST is open for trading in securities), on which transactions in
the Shares were recorded, in the case of Market Purchases, before the day on which the purchase or acquisition of
Shares was made and deemed to be adjusted for any corporate action that occurs after the relevant five (5) Market
Days, or in the case of Off-Market Purchases, before the date on which the Company makes an announcement of
the offer; and
(4)

the Directors of the Company and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and
things (including, without limitation, executing such documents as may be required) as they and/or he may consider
necessary, expedient, incidental or in the interests of the Company to give effect to the transactions contemplated
and/or authorised by this Resolution (see Note 4).
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Resolution 10
That:
(1)

approval be and is hereby given, for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, for the Company, its
subsidiaries and target associated companies (as defined in Appendix 2 to this Notice of Annual General Meeting
(“Appendix 2”)), or any of them, to enter into any of the transactions falling within the types of Interested Person
Transactions described in Appendix 2, with any person who falls within the classes of Interested Persons described in
Appendix 2, provided that such transactions are made on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the review
procedures for Interested Person Transactions as set out in Appendix 2 (the “Shareholders’ Mandate”);

(2)

the Shareholders’ Mandate shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, continue in force until the
date that the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is held or is required by law to be held, whichever is the
earlier;

(3)

the Audit Committee of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take such action as it deems proper in respect of
such procedures and/or to modify or implement such procedures as may be necessary to take into consideration any
amendment to Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual which may be prescribed by the SGX-ST from time to time; and

(4)

the Directors of the Company and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and
things (including, without limitation, executing such documents as may be required) as they and/or he may consider
expedient, necessary, incidental or in the interests of the Company to give effect to the Shareholders’ Mandate and/or
this Resolution (see Note 5).

To transact such other business which can be transacted at an annual general meeting of the Company.
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Transfer Books and the Register of Members of the Company will be closed on
5 May 2007 for the preparation of dividend warrants. Duly completed transfers received by the Company’s Registrar,
Lim Associates (Pte) Ltd, at 3 Church Street, #08-01 Samsung Hub, Singapore 049483, up to the close of business at 5.00 p.m.
on 4 May 2007 will be registered to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed first and final dividend. The proposed
first and final dividend if approved at the annual general meeting will be paid on 16 May 2007.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Caroline Chang
Company Secretary

Laura Low
Company Secretary

Singapore, 27 March 2007
Notes:1.

A member of the Company is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend the meeting and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The
instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
annual general meeting.

2.

Detailed information on the Directors can be found in the Board of Directors section of the Company’s Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December
2006. Mr Wee Sin Tho will upon re-election, continue to serve as Chairman of the Board Risk Committee and member of the Audit Committee. Mr Lam Kwok
Chong will upon re-election, continue to serve as member of the Divestment and New Investment Committee. Mr Tan Boon Huat will upon re-election,
continue to serve as member of the Board Risk Committee. These directors, other than Mr Lam Kwok Chong, are considered by the Nominating Committee to
be independent directors.

3.

Ordinary Resolution No. 8 is to empower the Directors from the date of the annual general meeting until the date of the next annual general meeting to issue
further Shares and Instruments in the Company, including a bonus or rights issue. The maximum number of Shares which the Directors may issue under this
Resolution shall not exceed the quantum set out in this Resolution.

4.

Ordinary Resolution No. 9 relates to the renewal of the Share Buy-Back Mandate, which was originally approved by Shareholders on 21 May 2003 and
amended on 23 April 2004. Please refer to Appendix 1 to this Notice of Annual General Meeting for details.

5.

Ordinary Resolution No. 10 relates to the renewal of a mandate given by Shareholders on 30 October 2002 and amended on 21 May 2003 and 26 April 2005
allowing the Company, its subsidiaries and target associated companies to enter into transactions with interested persons as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing
Manual of the SGX-ST. Please refer to Appendix 2 to this Notice of Annual General Meeting for details.
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Corporate information

Board of Directors
Teo Soon Hoe (Chairman)
Lam Kwok Chong
Tan Tin Wee
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Reggie Thein
Wee Sin Tho
Tan Boon Huat
Audit Committee
Reggie Thein (Chairman)
Tan Tin Wee
Wee Sin Tho
Nominating Committee
Tan Tin Wee (Chairman)
Teo Soon Hoe
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie
Remuneration and Share Option Committee
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie (Chairman)
Tan Tin Wee
Teo Soon Hoe
Divestment and New Investment Committee
Teo Soon Hoe (Chairman)
Lam Kwok Chong
Tan Tin Wee
Bernard Tan Tiong Gie

Registered Office
1 HarbourFront Avenue
#18-01 Keppel Bay Tower
Singapore 098632
Telephone: (65) 6270 6666
Telefax: (65) 6413 6391
Head Office
7 Gul Circle
Singapore 629563
Telephone: (65) 6897 7372
Telefax: (65) 6897 7872
Website: www.keppeltt.com.sg
Share Registrar
Lim Associates (Pte) Ltd
3 Church Street
#08-01 Samsung Hub
Singapore 049483
Telephone: (65) 6536 5355
Telefax: (65) 6536 1360
Auditors
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore
Audit Partner: Tan Wee Khim
Year appointed: 2006

Board Risk Committee
Wee Sin Tho (Chairman)
Reggie Thein
Tan Boon Huat
Company Secretaries
Caroline Chang
Laura Low
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Financial calendar

Financial year-end

31 December 2006

Announcement of 2006 results:
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Full year

24 April 2006
25 July 2006
19 October 2006
23 January 2007

Despatch of Summary Financial Report to Shareholders

27 March 2007

Despatch of Annual Report to Shareholders

10 April 2007

Annual General Meeting

25 April 2007

2006 Proposed final dividend
Books closure date
Payment date

5.00 p.m., 4 May 2007
16 May 2007

Announcement of 2007 results
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Full year

Financial calendar

April 2007
July 2007
October 2007
January 2008
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